
Central Bedfordshire 
Council
Priory House
Monks Walk
Chicksands, 
Shefford SG17 5TQ  

please ask for Leslie Manning

direct line 0300 300 5132

date 25 February 2015

NOTICE OF MEETING

STANDARDS SUB COMMITTEE

Date & Time
Thursday, 5 March 2015 10.00 a.m.

Venue at
Room 14, Priory House, Monks Walk, Shefford

Richard Carr
Chief Executive

To:    The Members of the STANDARDS SUB COMMITTEE:

Councillors:  P N Aldis, N B Costin, D J Hopkin and R B Pepworth

All other Members of the Council - on request

MEMBERS OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC ARE WELCOME TO ATTEND THIS 
MEETING

This meeting 
may be filmed.*



*Please note that phones and other equipment 
may be used to film, audio record, tweet or blog 
from this meeting.  No part of the meeting room is 
exempt from public filming.

The use of arising images or recordings is not 
under the Council’s control.



AGENDA

1.  Election of Chairman

To elect a Chairman for the meeting.

2.  Apologies for Absence

To receive apologies for absence.

3.  Members' Interests

To receive from Members any declarations of interest.

4.  Standards Sub-Committee Hearing (Appeal)

To consider an appeal by a councillor of Northill Parish Council against the 
original decision of the Standards Sub-Committee (Hearing) dated 14 October 
2014 and to either:

a) set aside the original decision if it considers it to be unreasonable and 
substitute its own decision;

b) confirm the original decision.

5.  Decision

To note that:

a) the Standards Sub-Committee (Appeal) may announce its decision on 
the day the appeal concludes;

b) any decision made by the Standards Sub-Committee (Appeal) will be in 
writing and sent to all relevant persons within five working days of the 
decision being made;

c) there is no further right of appeal.



This page is intentionally left blank



STANDARDS  SUB-COMMITTEE (APPEAL) 

APPEAL PROCEDURE 

(1)  The aim of this procedure is to ensure that any appeal heard by a 
Standards Sub-Committee (Appeal) against the decision of a Standards 
Sub-Committee (Hearing) is dealt with fairly and efficiently. The meeting is 
not a re-hearing and its business is confined to the grounds of the appeal. 

(2)  Any appeal request must be received in writing by the Monitoring Officer 
within 21 days of the written decision notice being issued by the 
Standards Sub-Committee (Hearing).An appeal can only be made on the 
grounds that: 

(i) the procedure has been wrongly applied; 

(ii) new evidence has come to light since the hearing; or 

(iii) there has been a misdirection in law. 

(3)  The appeal will be restricted to the consideration of papers with no 
representation permitted other than in writing.  The Monitoring Officer will 
submit any response to the appeal in writing. 

(4)  The Standards Sub-Committee (Appeal) will be made up of Members who 
have not previously been involved in the consideration of the complaint.  
The view of an Independent Person who has not previously been 
consulted will also be taken. 

(5)  The Standards Sub-Committee (Appeal) may: 

(i) set aside the original decision if it considers it to be unreasonable and 
substitute its own decision; or 

(ii) confirm the original decision. 

(6)       All appeals will be held in public.  There will be no participation by any of 
the parties involved or by any member of the public.  However, the 
Chairman will have the discretion to allow the Monitoring Officer, or 
anyone so appointed by the Monitoring Officer, to present the report and 
any other papers for consideration and to join the Sub-Committee during 
deliberation. 

(7)       The Standards Sub-Committee (Appeal) will retire to deliberate in private. 

(8)       Any decision made by the Standards Sub-Committee (Appeal) will be in 
writing and will be sent to all relevant persons within 5 working days of the 
decision being made. 

(9)       All decisions of the Standards Sub-Committee (Appeal) are binding and 
there is no further right of appeal. 

 

Page 5
Agenda Item 4



This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

Central Bedfordshire Council 
 

STANDARDS SUB-COMMITTEE (APPEAL)   5 March 2015 
 

 

Standards Sub-Committee Hearing (Appeal) 
 
Report of Lorna McShane, Acting Monitoring Officer 
(lorna.mcshane@centralbedfordshire.gov.uk)  
 
Advising Officers: Maria Damigos, Corporate Lawyer – Legal Services, 
(maria.damigos@centralbedfordshire.gov.uk  
 
 

 
Purpose of this report  
 

1. Under the Arrangements for dealing with Standards Allegations under 
the Localism Act 2011 detailed in the Constitution, the Standards Sub-
Committee (Appeal) are required to consider appeals made by 
complainants or subject members from decisions of the Standards 
Sub-Committee. 
 

 
 

 
The Standards Sub-Committee (Appeal) is asked to: 
 

1. To consider the appeal of the Subject Member, Cllr I Robinson of 
Northill Parish Council and to decide one of the following in respect 
of the original decision of the Standards Sub-Committee dated 14 
October 2014:- 
 
(i) to set aside if it considers it unreasonable and substitute its 

own decision; or 
 
(ii) confirm the decision. 
 

 
 
 
  

Page 7
Agenda Item 4

mailto:lorna.mcshane@centralbedfordshire.gov.uk
mailto:maria.damigos@centralbedfordshire.gov.uk


2 
 

Background 
 

1. Details of the original complaints made in April 2013 and Appendix (i) in the 
Report to Monitoring Officer. 

2. On 5 July 2013, the matter was referred to the Standards Sub-Committee to 
consider how the complaints should be dealt with.  It was resolved that the 
complaints would be investigated.  The Sub-Committee asked that the report be 
brought back to the same panel for consideration. 

3. The Report was prepared and, on 13 June 2014, the Standards Sub-Committee 
considered the Report of the Investigating Officer.  The Sub-Committee resolved 
that the local resolution recommended in the Report was not considered 
appropriate; that a public hearing be held to decide whether there had been a 
breach and, if so, what action to take; that as well as the complainants and the 
subject member the Independent Person, witnesses for the subject member, the 
former Chairman of Northill Parish Council and the current Chairman of Northill 
Parish Council and the Central Bedfordshire Council Ward Member should be 
invited to attend the hearing to give evidence. 

4. The public hearing took place on 29 and 30 September 2014.  The full written 
decision of the hearing was provided to the complainants and the subject 
member on 14 October 2014.  Appendix (ii). 

5. On 4 November 2014, the Monitoring Officer received an appeal from the subject 
member against the decision of the Standards Sub-Committee.  This was 
accepted as being within 21 days of the Standards Sub-Committee decision 
notice and containing valid grounds for appeal. 

Response to the Appeal 

6. The Appeal (Appendix (iii) including its Appendices).   

7. The paragraph numbers below refer to the paragraph numbers used in the 
Appeal. 

8. The Standards Sub-Committee (Appeal) is reminded any appeal is limited to:- 

(i) The procedure being wrongly applied; 
(ii) New evidence has come to light since the hearing; or 
(iii) A mis-direction in law. 

Nature of the Complaints (numbered as per the appeal document made 

by Cllr Robinson) 

1 (a) This is not considered to be a valid ground of appeal as it is a matter for the 

Standards Sub-Committee (Appeal) to decide what recommendations to 

accept. 

1 (b) (c) & (d)  This is in relation to the involvement of the Standards Committee at 
the early stage of a complaint, usually dealt with by the Monitoring Officer and 
not that only those cases of potential criminal conduct can be handled by the 
Standards Committee. 

Page 8
Agenda Item 4



3 
 

1 (e)  The subject member is claiming that there was a misdirection in law in that the 
definition of harassment which was used was not correct and may be outdated.  
The definition used was: 

“harassing a person includes alarming the person or causing the 
person distress” (i.e. the effect the conduct has on the person is 
relevant) and the person whose course of conduct is in question ought 
to know that it amounts to (or involves) harassment of another if a 
reasonable person in possession of the same information would think 
the course of conduct amounted to (or involved) harassment of the 
other. 

 
The subject member considers that this definition implies that the test is only 
subjective.  This is not accepted: the second part of the above definition clearly 
refers to a reasonable person in possession of the same information thinking 
the course of conduct amounted to or involved harassment.  The definition 
therefore also contains an objective element. 

It is not considered that the above definition is outdated.  It is based on the 
language used in the Protection from Harassment Act 1997 which is still in 
force.  The first part is from s.7(2) of the Act and the second part is based on 
s.1(2) of the Act.  It is acknowledged that this Act relates to criminal offences 
but was not used in this context.  It is further acknowledged for the avoidance 
of doubt that the actions of the subject member were never considered in the 
light of a criminal offence, it was merely the definition from the Act which was 
used. 

 
The Appeal suggests that a definition from 2010 used by ACAS would have 
been more appropriate.  The current ACAS guidance refers to the definition of 
harassment used in the Equality Act 2010.  If this is the definition referred to, it 
relates to harassment by reference to protected characteristics only. 

 
The definition in the Equality Act 2010 as detailed by ACAS is: 

“unwanted conduct related to a relevant protected characteristic, which 
has the purpose or effect of violating an individual’s dignity or creating an 
intimidating, hostile, degrading, humiliating or offensive environment for 
that individual”. 
 

It was for the Sub-Committee to decide what definition to adopt and as to what 
constituted harassment. 

 1 (f)  It is not considered this is a ground of appeal.  Any differences in the 
individual complaints which were relevant to the issues to be decided were 
considered and a matter for the Sub-Committee to decide. 

Nature of Reporting the Complaints 

2 (a) This is not considered to be a valid ground of appeal. 

2 (b) This is not considered to be a valid ground of appeal. 

2 (c) This is not considered to be a valid ground of appeal. 

Page 9
Agenda Item 4



4 
 

2 (d) This is not considered to be a valid ground of appeal.  As stated above, it 

was the decision of the Standards Sub-Committee of 13 June 2014 that the 

local resolution recommended in the report was not considered appropriate.  

This was because the comments of the complainants on the draft report 

indicated that they believed that the conduct of the subject member had not 

improved. 

2 (e) This is not considered to be a valid ground of appeal.   

2 (f) This is not considered to be a valid ground of appeal.   

2 (g) This is not considered to be a valid ground of appeal. 

3.  This is not part of the Appeal but, for completeness, the decision to hold the 

hearing in public is contained in the decision made by the Standards Sub-

Committee and the rule is that hearings are public unless resolved otherwise. 

Witness Statements 

4 (a) This raises the issue of procedure and is accepted as a valid ground of 

appeal.  It was originally agreed that witness statements would be 

exchanged on 24 September 2014 and it is correct that the statement of the 

Clerk was not provided until Friday, 26 September 2014 as the Clerk had 

not agreed the contents of the Statement.  The hearing commenced on 

Monday, 29 September 2014. 

The contents of the statement did not extend beyond the information provided 
in the Clerk’s original complaint which was included in the Report.   Although 
agreed procedure for exchange of witness statements had not been adhered 
to, this did not prejudice the subject member. 

4 (b) This is again a procedural issue.  Cllr Turner was asked to provide her 

views at the hearing.  It is believed the subject member was advised of this 

verbally on 24 September 2014 and this information was also available on 

the minutes of the Standards Sub-Committee of 13 June 2014.  No witness 

statement was taken from Cllr Turner as the Sub-Committee had requested 

her attendance and views.  There was therefore no statement to provide. 

The reference to a witness statement of the Investigating Officer is incorrect.  
The Investigating Officer provided submissions to the Sub-Committee.  The 
Investigating Officer was not a witness to the events giving rise to the 
complaints.   

4 (c) and (d) It is agreed that the subject member was guided and advised that 
the complaints referred to the events of the meeting of 8 April 2013.  Other 
allegations were detailed at the hearing.  As the witness statements that were 
exchanged with the subject member referred to some of those allegations, the 
subject member was however aware of them.  Although some of the allegations 
were again referred to in the submissions of the Investigating Officer, they were 
not taken into account in the deliberations of the Sub-Committee which made its 
decision based on the actions of the subject member at the meeting of 8 April 
2013, as shown by the written Decision Notice. 

Page 10
Agenda Item 4



5 
 

4 (e) It is not accepted that the subject member was disadvantaged.  The 

allegations were merely background information and were not considered 

nor made part of the Sub-Committee’s decision on the complaints.   

4 (f) This is not considered to be a valid ground of appeal.   

4 (g) This is not considered to be a valid ground of appeal.  The character 

witness statements were taken into account as part of the Sub-Committee 

paperwork. 

4 (h) This is not considered to be a valid ground of appeal as it relates to actions 

of Northill Parish Council.  Furthermore, it is not considered that any 

unfairness resulted from this.  The subject member did have witnesses to 

support him and their evidence was considered by the Sub-Committee. 

The Manner and Procedure of the Hearing 

5 (a) This is not considered to be a valid ground of appeal.   

5 (b) This is disputed.  The procedure dealing with findings of facts was carried 

out.  At the hearing, the subject member was asked if he had any 

observations on the procedure.  He replied he did not but did on the facts.  

The Sub-Committee then proceeded to paragraph 11 of the procedure and 

the Investigating Officer was invited to make representations which she did.  

The Investigating Officer then called witnesses whom the subject member 

was also able to question.  After this, the subject member called his 

witnesses and did also read out a statement of comment he had prepared 

regarding the facts (Appendix (iv)).  This comment was photocopied at the 

venue to circulate copies to the Sub-Committee.  Although the defence 

document was not referred to by the subject member during this part of the 

hearing, he could have done so had he wished.   

5 (c) The Sub-Committee did not refuse the requests of the subject member.  In 

relation to the definition, they said they would take the advice of the 

Monitoring Officer.  The definition was later provided.  In relation to the other 

points, the Chairman indicated that, after hearing from the witnesses, they 

would decide if relevant.   

5 (d) It is agreed that the subject member was not made aware that Cllr Turner 

had commented or complained about his behaviour soon after the meeting 

of 8 April 2013.  However, any comments or complaint of Cllr Turner were 

not treated as a formal complaint.  Neither were they considered by the 

Investigating Officer during the investigation.  It is believed that the subject 

member was advised verbally that Cllr Turner had been asked to attend by 

the Standards Sub-Committee.  The Standards Sub-Committee wanted the 

views of Cllr Turner, she was not considered a ‘complaint witness’ as both 

the Sub-Committee and the Investigating Officer were unaware of the 

comments or complaints of Cllr Turner prior to hearing from her on 29 

September 2014.  The subject member was aware of the Standards 

Hearing of 13 June 2014, the minutes for which set out the persons who 

Page 11
Agenda Item 4



6 
 

were to be invited to attend.  It is therefore considered that this was not 

unfair to the subject member. 

5 (e) At the hearing, there was a request by the Chairman of Northill Parish 

Council, as the Clerk’s employer, that the subject member was not allowed 

to question the Clerk directly.  This was pursuant to a grievance procedure 

which had decided that the subject member was not to have contact with 

the Clerk.  The subject member had also raised this prior to the hearing and 

had been advised that it would be up to the Chairman.  The Standards Sub-

Committee did not go into the specifics, nor did they make any judgment on 

the matter apart from stating that it would be more helpful if the subject 

member could ask directly.  The Chairman agreed that questions would be 

put to the Sub-Committee panel who would re-direct them to the Clerk.  All 

questions put by the subject member were put to the Clerk who answered 

them.  The subject member was able to hear the answers of the Clerk and 

ask further questions.  Whilst more time-consuming and inconvenient, it is 

not considered that this was prejudicial in any way. 

5 (f) This is not considered to be a valid ground of appeal. 

5 (g) It is accepted that this was not part of the written procedure as every 

eventuality cannot be catered for.  However upon receipt of a request from 

the employer of a witness giving evidence, the Chairman and the panel 

must consider any such request.  As the subject member’s questions were 

put to, and answered by, the Clerk in the presence of the subject member, it 

is considered that there was no prejudice to the subject member and was 

acceptable in the circumstances of the request from an employer. 

5 (h) This is not considered to be a valid ground of appeal.  For ease, it is 

accepted that Cllr Turner did not provide details of any criminal-like 

behaviour. 

5 (i) The Investigating Officer did not provide any witness statement.  The 

Investigating Officer did make submissions to the Standards Sub-

Committee by introducing her Investigations Report, then on the findings of 

fact, the Code of Conduct and the sanctions to be imposed.  The subject 

member was also able to make submissions, all in accordance with the 

procedure.  This part is not considered to be a valid ground of appeal.  It is 

accepted that the Investigating Officer was allowed to ask the subject 

member questions and that this was not in the procedure.  The Standards 

Sub-Committee had asked the Investigating Officer if she had any questions 

for the subject member.  The subject member was aware that he could be 

asked questions at any time by the Sub-Committee.  This did not cause any 

unfairness to the subject member as he did not need to prepare anything for 

the questioning.  The procedure will be altered to reflect this possibility in 

the future however. 

5 (j) This is not considered to be a valid ground of appeal.  The Appeals Sub-

Committee is however asked to note that, at no time during the hearing, was 

Page 12
Agenda Item 4



7 
 

it considered necessary to stop questioning, apart from on the basis of 

relevance. 

5 (k) This is not considered to be a valid ground of appeal. 

5 (l) The submission statement of the Investigating Officer is just that and it is for 

the Sub-Committee to accept or reject the submissions made. 

5 (m) This is not considered to be a valid ground of appeal.  The Investigating 

Officer was not a witness to the events of 8 April 2013.  The Standards Sub-

Committee were to decide on facts, decide if those facts gave rise to a 

breach of the Code of Conduct and, if so, decide on appropriate sanctions in 

relation to the events of 8 April 2013. 

5 (n)This is not considered to be a valid ground of appeal.  See 5 (m) above. 

5 (o) Events outside of 8 April 2013 were put before the Sub-Committee to 

provide background or context to the events of 8 April 2013.  The 

questioning of witnesses by the subject member gave much more detail to 

the Sub-Committee than contained in the paperwork and did provide a 

much better context.  None of the background information was taken into 

account in deciding what had happened on 8 April 2013, although some of it 

was in relation to the sanctions that were imposed. 

Evidence not apparently fully considered at the Hearing, Including fresh 

evidence 

6 (a) Although not considered at the hearing, this was background information 

about why the subject member wanted information and was asking 

questions at the meeting of 8 April 2013.  That the subject member was not 

aware of the full process, and that he should have been, was however taken 

into account during the deliberations of the Standards Sub-Committee. 

6 (b) This is not considered to be a valid ground of appeal.  The subject member 

did raise this at the hearing.  The article referred to was not taken into 

account in deliberations in any event.  Neither the Chairman at the time of 

the meeting of 8 April 2013 nor the subsequent Chairman attended the 

hearing despite being asked to attend.  Therefore they did not provide any 

evidence or information which was taken into account by the Standards 

Sub-Committee. 

6 (c) This is not considered to be a valid ground of appeal.  The minutes were 

not considered by the Standards Sub-Committee.  The Standards Sub-

Committee was considering whether the behaviour of the subject member 

breached the Code of Conduct and not whether the then Chairman was 

breaching the Code of Conduct. 

6 (d) This is not considered to be a valid ground of appeal.  It is confirmed that 

this information was discussed thoroughly as background information. 

6 (e) This is not considered to be a valid ground of appeal. 

Page 13
Agenda Item 4



8 
 

6 (f) This is not considered to be a valid ground of appeal.  For the avoidance of 

doubt, Cllr Shadbolt had checked the Northill Parish Council website on the 

evening of 29 September 2014 and found a document which detailed the 

terms of reference and powers of each of the Committees of Northill Parish 

Council.  This document is separate from the Standing Orders of Northill 

Parish Council.  It is believed that the document was titled Terms of 

Reference Committees May 2013 and this remains on the website.  It is 

noted that there may have been no such document prior to May 2013 but it 

was available at the time of the hearing. 

6 (g) This is not considered to be a valid ground of appeal.  Whilst the grievance 

panel was mentioned, it was not within the remit of the Standards Sub-

Committee to consider the legality or otherwise of the grievance panel, its 

decisions, fairness or to question Northill Parish Council in its capacity of 

employer. 

6 (h) This is not considered to be a valid ground of appeal for the reasons 

mentioned in 6 (f). 

6 (i) This is not considered to be a valid ground of appeal. 

6 (j) This is not considered to be a valid ground of appeal. 

6 (k) This is not considered to be a valid ground of appeal. 

6 (l) This is not considered to be a valid ground of appeal. 

7 and 8 and 9 and 10.  Do not seem to contain any grounds for appeal but do 

contain a number of statements, opinion and submissions, the majority of 

which are not relevant to the substantial reason for the complaints in the first 

place which were due to the behaviour of Cllr Robinson at the meeting of 8 

April 2013. 

 
 

Appendices 
 
(i) Documents originally submitted to Standards Sub-Committee (Hearing) 
(ii) Decision Notice dated 14 October 2014 
(iii) Appeal by Cllr Robinson with Appendices 
(iv) Submissions by subject member at hearing  

 
 
 

Page 14
Agenda Item 4



 
 
 

APPENDIX (I) 
 
DOCUMENTS ORIGINALLY SUBMITTED TO 
STANDARDS SUB-COMMITTEE (HEARING) 

Page 15
Agenda Item 4



This page is intentionally left blank



HEARING PROCEDURE FOR 
THE GENERAL PURPOSES STANDARDS SUB-COMMITTEE 

in respect of referrals from the Monitoring Officer 
 
 

Interpretation 
 
1.  “Member” means the Member of the Authority, which includes, Central 

Bedfordshire Council, Town and Parish Councils and Co-opted Members, who 
is the subject of the allegation being considered by the Standards Sub-
Committee, unless stated otherwise.  It also includes the Member’s nominated 
representative. 
 

2.  “Investigator” means the Investigating Officer nominated by the Monitoring 
Officer to carry out the investigation. 
 

3.  “Sub-Committee” refers to the General Purposes Standards Sub-Committee. 
 

4.  “Legal Advisor” means the officer responsible for providing legal advice to the 
Sub-Committee.  This may be the Monitoring Officer, another legally qualified 
officer of the Authority or someone appointed for this purpose outside the 
Authority. 
 

Representation 
 
5.  The Member may be represented or accompanied during the meeting by a 

Solicitor, Counsel or with the permission of the Sub-Committee, another 
person. 
 

Legal Advice 
 
6.  The Sub-Committee may take legal advice from its legal advisor at any time 

during the hearing or while they are considering the outcome.  The substance 
of any legal advice given, to the Sub-Committee would be shared in the public 
domain with the Member and the Investigator if they are attending the hearing. 
 

Setting the Scene 
 
7.  The Chairman will formally introduce all Members of the Sub-Committee and 

everyone who is formally involved in the Sub-Committee.  The Chairman will 
then explain that the Sub-Committee is following a set procedure to ensure a 
fair and consistent approach is adopted which follows the principles of natural 
justice. 
 

Preliminary Procedure Issues 
 
8.  The Sub-Committee should then resolve any issues of disagreement about 

how the hearing should continue, which has not been resolved during the pre-
hearing process. 
 

Making finding of facts 
 
9.  After dealing with any preliminary issues, the Sub-Committee should then 

move on to consider whether or not there are any significant disagreements 
about the facts contained in the Investigator’s report. 
 

Page 17
Agenda Item 4



 

10.  If there are no disagreements about the facts, the Sub-Committee can move 
on to the next stage of the hearing at 18. 
 

11.  If there is a disagreement, the Investigator, if present should be invited to 
make any necessary representations to support the relevant findings of facts 
in the report.  With the Sub-Committee’s permission, the Investigator may call 
any necessary supporting witnesses to give evidence.  The Sub-Committee 
may give the Member an opportunity to challenge any evidence put forward by 
any witness called by the Investigator. 
 

12.  The Member should then have the opportunity to make representations to 
support his or her version of the facts and, with the Sub-Committee’s 
permission, to call any necessary witnesses to give evidence. 
 

13.  At any time, the Sub-Committee may question any of the people involved or 
any of the witnesses, and may allow the Investigator to challenge any 
evidence put forward by witnesses called by the Member. 
 

14.  If the Member disagrees with most of the facts, it may make sense for the 
Investigator to start by making representations on all the relevant facts, 
instead of discussing each fact individually. 
 

15.  If a Member disagrees with any relevant fact in the Investigator’s report, 
without having given prior notice of the disagreement, he or she must give 
good reasons for not mentioning it before the hearing.  If the Investigator is not 
present, the Sub-Committee will consider whether or not it would be in the 
public interest to continue in his or her absence.  After considering the 
Member’s explanation for not raising the issue at an earlier stage, the Sub-
Committee may then:- 
 

 (a) continue with the hearing, relying on the information in the Investigator’s 
report;  

 (b) allow the Member to make representations about the issue, and invite 
the Investigator to respond and call any witnesses, as necessary; or 

 (c) postpone the hearing to arrange for appropriate witnesses to be present, 
or the Investigator to be present if he or she is not already. 
 

16.  The Sub-Committee will usually request all persons leave the room while they 
consider the representations and evidence in private. 
 

17.  On their return, the Chairman will announce the Sub-Committee’s finding of 
the fact. 
 

Did the Member fail to follow the code 
 
18.  The Sub-Committee then needs to consider whether or not based on the 

fact(s) it has found, the Member has failed to follow the Code of Conduct. 
 

19.  The Member should be invited to give relevant reasons why the Sub-
Committee should not decide that he or she has failed to follow the Code. 
 

20.  The Sub-Committee should then consider any verbal or written 
representations from the Investigator. 
 
 

Page 18
Agenda Item 4



21.  The Sub-Committee may, at any time, question any one involved on any point 
they raise in their representations. 
 

22.  The Member should be invited to make any final relevant points. 
 

23.  The Sub-Committee will usually request all persons leave the room while they 
consider the representations. 
 

24.  On their return, the Chairman will announce the Sub-Committee’s decision as 
to whether or not the Member has failed to follow the Code of Conduct. 
 

If the Member has not failed to follow the Code of Conduct 
 
25.  If the Sub-Committee decides that the Member has not failed to follow the 

Code of Conduct, the Sub-Committee can move on to consider whether it 
should make any recommendations to the Authority. 
 

If the Member has failed to follow the Code of Conduct 
 
26.  If the Sub-Committee decides that the Member has failed to follow the Code of 

Conduct, it will consider any verbal or written representations from the 
Investigator and the Member as to:- 
 

 (a) whether the Committee should set a sanction; or 

 (b) what form the sanction should take.  

  

27.  The Sub-Committee may question the Investigator and Member, and take 
legal advice, to make sure they have the information they need in order to 
make an informed decision. 
 

28.  The Sub-Committee will request that all persons leave the room while they 
consider whether or not to impose a sanction on the Member and, if so, what 
the sanction should be. 
 

29.  On their return the Chairman will announce the Sub-Committee’s decision. 
 

Recommendations to the Authority 
 
30.  After considering any verbal or written representations from the Investigator, 

the Sub-Committee will consider whether or not it should make any 
recommendations to the Authority, with a view to promoting high standards of 
conduct amongst members. 
 

The written decision 
 
31.  The Sub-Committee will announce its decision on the day and provide a short 

written decision on that day.  It will also need to issue a full written decision 
within 2 weeks.   
 

32.  The decision will be circulated to all relevant persons. 
 
 

33.  Any appeal must be made to the Monitoring Officer of Central Bedfordshire 
Council within 21 days of the full written decision 

 

Page 19
Agenda Item 4



This page is intentionally left blank



FLOW CHART  
STANDARDS SUB-COMMITTEE HEARING PROCEDURE 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1.  
 Formal Introductions of those present by the Chairman 

- Members introduced with an indication of whether they are 
Independent, Parish Council/Town Council or District 

- Officers introduced – Monitoring Officer, Investigating Officer 

2. 
 Preliminary Issues 

- confirm Members interests disclosed in accordance with Code of 
Conduct 

- confirm meeting is quorate 
- confirm whether the Member is represented or not 
- Hearing will be conducted in public but Sub-Committee will 

adjourn to make determination in private 
- Monitoring Officer will go into private session with Sub-

Committee to provide legal advice, if necessary 
- determine whether any witnesses will be called, including details 

of their names 

3. 
 Finding of Facts 

- are there any significant disputes in respect of the facts 
contained within the report? 

 

Yes 

(1) Investigating Officer requested to present case and 
comment on the facts as per the report. Investigating 
Officer may call witnesses to support evidence. 

(2) Member given the opportunity to cross examine witnesses.  
(3) Sub-Committee given the opportunity to ask questions of 

witnesses. 
(4) Member given the opportunity to present his case and 

comment on the facts as per the Investigating Officer’s 
report.  The Member may call witnesses to support 
evidence. 

(5) The Investigating Officer given the opportunity to cross- 
examine witnesses. 

(6) Sub-Committee may question witnesses, Investigating 
Officer or Member. 

 

No 

Move to next 
procedure 5 

4. 
Member and Investigating Officer to leave the room while Sub-Committee 
determine a Finding of Facts. 

 
 

5. 
 Sub-Committee decision given on Finding of Facts 

 Page 21
Agenda Item 4



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6. 
 Did Member fail to follow Code of Conduct? 

- Member to make submissions 
- Investigating Officer to make any submissions 
- Sub-Committee may request further information 

 

 Decision given on 
whether failed to follow 
Code 
If no breach or breach but 
no action to be taken, 
matter concluded 

9. If breached the Code then Sub-
Committee consider applying sanctions 

- representation from Investigating 
Officer 

- representation from Member 
 

 

11. 
 Decision on sanction given by the Sub-Committee and any 

recommendations to the Authority 
- Final written decision will be despatched within 2 weeks 
- Right of appeal to Central Bedfordshire Council within 21 days of the 

full written decision 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

7. 
Member and Investigating Officer leave the room 

8. 
Sub-Committee give their decision in respect of:- 
 

(1) No breach of Code 
(2) Breach of the Code but no action  
(3) Breach of the Code and sanctions will be applied. 

10. 
The Member and Investigating Officer leave the room. 

NB: Sanctions 
 Censure 
 Restrict access to resources 
 Apologies, training, mediation, conciliation 

Page 22
Agenda Item 4



1     
 

Complaints Investigation Report  
 

Complaints against Councillor Ian Robinson – Northill Parish Council 

Investigating Officer - Lorna McShane 

Monitoring Officer - John Atkinson 

 
 
1. Summary of the complaints against Councillor Ian Robinson 

 
1.1. There are seven complaints in total from Members of Northill Parish Council and 

the Clerk.   All of the complaints relate to events that took place during the Parish 
Council Meeting on Monday 8th April 2013.  
 

1.2. The complainants are listed in the table below together with the relevant 
Appendix number.  

 
 

Complainants  Appendix 

Leanne Bacon Clerk to Northill Parish Council A 

Councillor Helen Papworth B 

Councillor David Kay C 

Councillor Wendi Momen D 

Councillor Sally Mandley E 

Councillor Damian Wilcox F 

Councillor Keith Bennett G 

 
1.3. All of the complaints allege that Councillor Robinson failed to observe aspects of 

Northill Parish Council’s Code of Conduct, which was adopted on 21st May 2012. 
Appendix H. Complainants allege that Cllr Robinson did not adhere to the 
following aspects of the Code of Conduct: 
 
1.2.1 Members must set an example by their behaviour and shall act in a way 

that enhances public trust and confidence in the integrity of the Council 
and its Members.  
(4.14 Code of Conduct) 
 

1.2.2 Members must show must show respect and courtesy to others.  
(4.15 Code of Conduct) 

 
1.2.3 Members should value the Council’s officers and work alongside them to 

achieve the Council’s objectives.  Members must on no account behave 
in a manner that might constitute bullying.  

         (4.16 Code of Conduct). 
 

2. Corroboration of issues by complainants 
 
2.1. All of the complainants corroborate each other and set out the same version of 

events on the evening of the 8th April 2013. In view of this, I decided that it was 
not necessary to interview all of the complainants, as there was no dispute as to 
the facts that led to the complaints being made. I did however interview Leanne 

Page 23
Agenda Item 4



2     
 

Bacon - Clerk to the Parish Council, notes are set out in Appendix I and 
Councillor Robinson in Appendix J. 

 
2.2. In addition to the 7 complaints which were submitted to the Monitoring Officer 

after the Parish Council Meeting on 8th April 2013, the Monitoring Officer 
received correspondence from the following individuals: 

 
 

2.2.1 Email from Sam Vernon dated 3.5.2013 Appendix K 
 

Sam Vernon, a reporter on the Biggleswade Chronicle, forwarded an 
email with a copy letter attached,  which  stated  that the Clerk was 
allegedly harassed, was down to the weak handling by the Chair at the 
meeting.  The Chair should have answered the questions raised by 
Councillor Robinson without bringing the Clerk into the debate and should 
have stopped the harassment by at least two other Councillors who 
verbally attacked the speaker. This was not a criticism of these 
Councillors as they were only doing what the Chair should have done in 
controlling the meeting. 

 
2.2.1 Letter from John Davies to John Atkinson 23.5.2013 Appendix L 
 
         John Davies of Upper Caldecote wrote to John Atkinson - Monitoring 

Officer setting out his version of events as a member of the public who 
attended the Parish Council Meeting on 8 April 2013.   He had recently 
moved to the Parish. The letter records that Councillor Robinson raised 
several matters and that the Clerk took over answering the questions 
although they were addressed to the Chair. Occasionally she did ask the 
Chair if she could respond but as the meeting progressed it became a 
dialogue between her and Councillor Robinson. Councillor Robinson 
asked the Clerk to detail responses from various parties to query why the 
Ickwell Road Site for Affordable Housing had not been progressed. Mr 
Davies, was of the view, that although Councillor Robinson may have 
been very hard and insistent with his questioning, he was getting 
increasingly frustrated that the Clerk not the Chair was answering his 
questions and not giving answers to the questions he was raising. 

 
2.2.2 Letter from Alan Bigg to Monitoring Officer dated 11.4.2013  
          Appendix M 
 

The Monitoring Officer also received a letter from Alan Bigg, who 
commented that the behaviour of Councillor Robinson was not 
cooperative and was abrasive and vexatious. 

 
3. Alleged breaches of the Code of Conduct  

 
3.1. The situation that has given rise to the complaints against Councillor Robinson 

took place in April 2013 and is therefore subject to the Northill Parish Council’s 
Code of Conduct, which was adopted on 21st May 2012.  Appendix H 

 
3.1.1 Members must set an example by their behaviour and shall act in a way 

that enhances public trust and confidence in the integrity of the Council 
and its Members. (4.14 Code of Conduct).   
 
 

Page 24
Agenda Item 4



3     
 

Examples of alleged breaches are given below: 
 
 
3.1.1.1 “Cllr Robinson had pointed purposely and extremely rudely at two 

councillors, calling them Councillor "What's His Name", and had 
repeatedly refused to let anyone else speak or interrupt him to challenge 
his behaviour. This disgraceful behaviour follows on from the previous 
Council Meeting, a Planning Meeting and the Annual Parish Meeting held 
on the same night, when he had also monopolised the floor with complete 
disregard for the protocol of agenda items and procedures for voting, 
despite the Clerk having set out this information very clearly  in an email 
sent prior to the meeting.” Helen Papworth.  Appendix B 

 
3.1.1.2 The “meeting had a large number of concerned attendees, because of 

recent planning application for Affordable Housing in Upper Caldecote, 
who all witnessed Cllr Robinson's erratic and inappropriate behaviour, 
and subsequently lost the opportunity to see whether Northill Parish 
Council would uphold the Planning Committee's decision, once the 
meeting was abandoned.” Helen Papworth.  Appendix B 

 
3.1.1.3 “Councillor Ian Robinson harassed the Clerk to such an extent that 

she left the meeting in a distressed state.” Keith Bennett. Appendix G 
 
             “Councillor Robinson’s behaviour was witnessed by Parish Councillor 

and a County Councillor together with a larger than normal gathering of 
the general public” Keith Bennett. Appendix G 

 
3.1.1.4 “Councillor Robinson’s behaviour was totally unacceptable in the 

environment of the Parish Council Meeting”. I therefore can only conclude 
that Councillor Robinson has brought the Parish Council into disrepute.” 
Damian Wilcox. Appendix F 
 

3.1.1.5 “Councillor Robinson seems incapable of accepting any decision he 
does not agree with and then pursues this to the point of bringing a good 
Parish Council to disrepute. David Kay.  Appendix C 

 
  

3.1.2 Members must show must show respect and courtesy to others. (4.15 Code 
of Conduct) Appendix H 
 
Examples of alleged breaches are given below: 

 
 
3.1.2.1 “He refused to let other Councillors speak by insisting that he was 

‘not finished” David Kay.  Appendix C 
 

3.1.2.2 “He loudly and repeatedly questioned the Clerk and the Chair, 
despite having already received perfectly adequate answers”. David 
Kay.  Appendix C 

 
3.1.2.3 “At the Northill Parish Council Meeting on the 8th April 2013 

Councillor Ian Robinson repeatedly failed to show respect and 
acknowledge the respect of the Chair. He did not stop talking when 
requested to by the Chair and monopolised the proceedings. 

Page 25
Agenda Item 4



4     
 

Furthermore he was not courteous to other Councillors.”            
Keith Bennett. Appendix G 
 

 
3.1.2.4 “Although Councillor Ian Robinson has been referred to ‘The Good 

Councillor’s Guide’ by our Clerk, I feel that he has not taken on 
board the requirements of how to conduct himself in meetings. He 
is discourteous and disrespectful to others”. Keith Bennett 
Appendix G 

 
3.1.2.5 “Prior to this event, Councillor Robinson had pointed purposely and 

extremely rudely at two Councillors and had repeatedly refused to 
let anyone else speak or interrupt him to challenge his behaviour”  
Helen Papworth. Appendix B 

 
3.1.2.6 “He quickly became loud and aggressive raising his voice and 

demanding to be allowed to finish. At times he banged his hand on 
the table. This courtesy was given to him. He continued to ask 
questions but would not accept the answers as they were not to his 
liking”. Sally Mandley.  Appendix E 

 
3.1.2.7 “Councillor Robinson was unstoppable raising his voice to 

overcome the Chairman’s voice. At no time despite being asked, 
did he cease his rant, nor afford the same courtesy of allowing 
others to finish what they were saying”. Sally Mandley.   

       Appendix E 
 

3.1.2.8 “He was loud, aggressive, impolite to others and disdainful of the 
requirements of courtesy and impartiality.”  Wendi Momen. 
Appendix D  

 
3.1.3 Members should value the Council’s officers and work alongside them to 

achieve the Council’s objectives.  Members must on no account behave in a 
manner that might constitute bullying. (4.16 Code of Conduct)  Appendix H 
 
Examples of alleged breaches are given below: 
 
3.1.3.1 “Finally the Clerk had taken enough bullying and walked out, 

causing our Chair to adjourn the meeting.” David Kay Appendix C 
 
3.1.3.2 “The Chairman, Cllr D. Milton was forced to abandon the meeting 

after the Clerk, Ms Leanne Bacon left the room ( in distress) having 
withstood some very hostile and repeated questioning (~20 minutes 
plus) from Cllr Robinson during the "Matters Arising" section of the 
agenda.”  Helen Papworth.  Appendix B 

 
3.1.3.3 “At a recent Parish Council meeting on 8th April Councillor 

Robinson’s behaviour was unacceptable. He was both aggressive 
and bullying to the Council, the Chair and most particularly our 
female Clerk. When responses to his points were given either he 
talked over the response or if the response was unacceptable to 
him and the Parishioners at the meeting”. Damian Wilcox.  
Appendix F 

 

Page 26
Agenda Item 4



5     
 

3.1.3.4 “The behaviour exhibited by Councillor Robinson would have been 
unacceptable at any public situation. The behaviour was 
unacceptable in a workplace (the Clerk is an employee of the 
Parish Council and therefore by extension Councillor Robinson is 
one of her employers). Damian Wilcox.  Appendix F 

 
3.1.3.5 “Councillor Robinson continues to promote the interests and views 

of theses two Parishioners. His (and their) manner is one of 
harassment and bullying in particularly at the Clerk”. Sally Mandley.  
Appendix E 

 
3.1.3.6 “The events at the Monday’s Council Meeting were unfortunately 

not a one off. Councillor Robinson has previously lost control. In 
particular at the Annual Parish Meeting he behaved in a similar 
manner”. Sally Mandley.  Appendix E 

 
3.1.3.7 “He belittled two other Councillors who tried to reason with him, 

refused to give the floor despite the requests of the Chair, was 
highly disrespectful to the Chair and most significantly made 
sustained ad hominem attacks on the Clerk such that they 
amounted to bulling”. Wendi Momen.  Appendix D 

 
 

3.2 The complaints, if substantiated, would constitute a breach of the Code of Conduct 
adopted by Northill Parish Council. 

 
4. Consultation with Independent Person.   

 
4.1. Before reaching my conclusions about the complaints I sought the views of an 

Independent Person appointed by the Council in accordance with Section 28 of the 
Localism Act 2011. I asked Martin Leppert to review the complaints and relevant 
papers. The Independent Person’s comments are as follows:- Appendix N 
 

4.2. "I am happy to agree with your proposed way forward based on the reasons we 
discussed and the details set out in your report. The actions taken by the Councillor 
immediately after the meeting and follow up action, by attending a course, goes 
some way to mitigating his actions on the night in question. From the information 
supplied I think that clearly the history leading up to the meeting, the manner in 
which it was conducted and controlled, all helped bring about this rather 
unsatisfactory event. I do not think Councillor Robinson should shoulder all the 
blame as it would appear he felt he was being obstructed in getting appropriate 
information from the Parish Council (whom he is a part of), getting unhelpful 
responses to questions does not, in my experience, help. Nor the fact that only one 
of the complainants refers to his immediate apology which I feel rather lessens the 
quality of their complaint. Not in my opinion a very happy state of affairs. 

 
4.3. I also feel I must point out that almost a year has passed since the night in question 

and I can only assume that all involved (except the Chair) remain and that Councillor 
Robinson has either continued to act in the manner described or modified his 
behaviour. I note that there is another case pending which appears to be linked and 
is subject of a separate investigation”. 

 
4.4. Following receipt of further comments on the draft report  from Cllr Robinson 

Appendix R and  three  of the complainants:  Cllr Kay  Appendix O, Cllr Momen  

Page 27
Agenda Item 4



6     
 

Appendix P, Cllr Bennett Appendix Q and the  amended report was sent to the 
Independent Person.  

 
4.5. The views of the Independent Person remained unchanged “despite being 

disappointed that there does not seem to have been any changes” .  See  
Appendix S 

 
 
 
 

 
5. Comments from the complainants on the Draft Report  

 
I sent a copy of the Draft Report to all of the Complainants and the Chair and Vice Chair 
of Northill Parish Council. Their comments were incorporated into the second draft, 
which was then submitted to the Independent Person.   I have summarised the 
comments received below.    

 
 
5.1 Comments from Councillor David Kay.  Appendix O 

 
5.1.1 The Chairman was in charge at the meeting and the fact that he struggled to 

contain Councillor Robinson was no surprise as he was virtually out of control 
in playing to the Gallery. 
 

5.1.2 Considers that Mr Davis would support Councillor Robinson as they had both 
been involved in opposing the site for affordable housing 
. 

5.1.3 There has been no moderation in Councillor Robinson’s behaviour. 
 

5.1.4 Councillor Robinson now writes a weekly column in the Biggleswade 
Chronicle on behalf of Caldecote Voices, in which Councillor Kay considers 
Councillor Robinson gives his own interpretation of Northill Parish Meetings. 

 
5.1.5 Observation by the author of the report “I have looked at the website for 

Caldecote Voices and read recent back editions of the column in the 
Chronicle, although the column seems to be an outlet for Councillor 
Robinson’s pet subjects, he does not say anything objectionable or offensive 
about the Parish Council and it appears to be a summary of business and 
question asked at the Parish Council Meeting’s.”  

 
5.2 Councillor Wendi Momen  Appendix P 

 
5.2.1 Councillor Momen considers that if Councillor Robinson does receive 

appropriate and correct information from the Clerk, but he does not like the 
answers and because he disagrees, he asks the same questions repeatedly 
and has accused the Clerk of withholding and holding information from him. 
 

5.2.2 There is no evidence of any attempt to create or sustain good and cordial 
relationships with the Clerk or the Parish Council. Councillor Robinson goads 
the Clerk at the meetings and is sarcastic and unrelenting with his 
questioning. 

 

Page 28
Agenda Item 4



7     
 

5.2.3 This behaviour was evidenced at the AGM on 31st March 2014 when 
Councillor Robinson monopolized discussions and repeatedly asked the 
same questions. 

 
5.2.4 Councillor Robinson still behaves in a manner that can be described as 

bullying and intimidating to the Clerk. 
 

5.3 Councillor Keith Bennett  Appendix Q 
 
5.3.1 Councillor Robinson has not changed his unacceptable behaviour and 

conduct and this has further deteriorated over recent months. He also 
chooses to be very selective in what he remembers to suit the occasion. 

 
 

5.4 Councillor Robinson   Appendix R 
 
5.4.1 Councillor Robinson has also sent his comments on the Draft Report. He 

considers the report to be a balanced assessment, but does not accept that 
his behaviour constitutes a breach the Code of Conduct. He is however 
willing to accept the recommendation and the opportunity to resolve the 
matter within the confines of the Parish Council without further harmful 
publicity. 

 
 
6. Conclusion 

 
6.1. In reaching my conclusion, I have considered : 

 
6.1.1. the written complaints from seven Parish Councillors who were present at 

the meeting.  Appendices: A, B, C, D, E, F, G 
 

6.1.2. the accounts of both Leanne Bacon Appendix I and Councillor Robinson 
Appendix J about the   events at the Parish Council Meeting on 8th April 
2013  

 
6.1.3. the written accounts of 3 independent members of the public who wrote 

letters to the Monitoring Officer about the meeting. Appendices: K, L, M 
 

6.1.4. the views of the Independent Person at draft stage of the report Appendix N  
 

6.1.5. the feedback from Cllr Robinson Appendix R and three complainants 
Appendices O, P, Q 

 
6.1.6. the views of the Independent Person on the report which included the 

feedback outlined in 5.1.4  Appendix S 
 

6.1.7. the minutes of the Parish Council Meeting held on 8th April 2013.   
Appendix T 

 
6.1.8. the proposal to allocate a site and build affordable housing in the Parish was 

likely to provide opposition and strong views for and against the proposal. 
Councillor Robinson clearly felt that he was not getting answers to questions 
he raised on behalf of local residents about the decision to allocate the 
Biggleswade Road Site for affordable housing.  

 

Page 29
Agenda Item 4



8     
 

6.1.9. the debate at the meeting became very heated and the questions asked by 
Councillor Robinson became so insistent that the Clerk felt that she was 
being bullied and harassed to such an extent that she left the meeting and 
this version of events is supported by all seven members of the Parish 
Council who have made formal complaints. There is also evidence from 
independent members of the public to suggest that the Chair of the meeting 
should have intervened earlier and taken control of the meeting and stopped 
the exchange between Councillor Robinson and the Clerk. 

 
6.2 I consider that Councillor Robinson’s behaviour on 8th April 2013 did constitute a 

breach of the Northill Council’s Code of Conduct Appendix H, in particular 
paragraphs 4.14, 4.15 and 4.16.  However after consulting with the Independent 
Person, I consider that the Monitoring Officer should seek a local resolution of the 
complaint. 
 
 
 

6.3 I have also taken into account: 
 
6.3.1 the fact that Councillor Robinson did acknowledge that his behaviour had 

got out of hand at the meeting  
 

6.3.2 late on the evening of the 8th April 2013 he sent a written apology to the 
Clerk and the Chair copied to all Members of the Parish Council.  

 
6.3.3 Councillor Robinson has also voluntarily attended a course organised by the 

Bedfordshire Society of Local Councils in November 2013 covering practice 
and procedure for local council meetings. 

 
 
7. Recommendation  

 
7.1. In view of above, I am recommending that the Monitoring Officer should seek a local 

resolution of the complaints. 
 
 

6 June 2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 30
Agenda Item 4



9     
 

 
Appendices 

 

Appendix Description 

A Complaint from Leanne Bacon Clerk to Northill Parish Council 

B Complaint from Councillor Helen Papworth 

C Complaint from Councillor David Kay 

D Complaint from Councillor Wendi Momen 

E Complaint from Councillor Sally Mandley 

F Complaint from Councillor Damian Wilcox 

G Complaint from Councillor Keith Bennett 

H Northill Parish Council’s Code of Conduct 

I Interview with Leanne Bacon 

J Interview with Cllr Robinson 

K Email from Sam Vernon  

L Letter from John Davies to John Atkinson 

M Letter from Alan Bigg to Monitoring Officer 

N Consultation with Independent Person – at draft report stage 

O Comments on Draft Report from Cllr David Kay 

P Comments on Draft Report from Cllr Wendi Momen 

Q Comments on Draft Report from Cllr  Keith Bennett 

R Comments on Draft Report from Cllr Robinson 

S 
Views of Independent person on updated report including feedback from 
Cllr Kay, Cllr Momen, Cllr Bennett 

T Minutes of Northill Parish Council Meeting 8th April 2013 

 

Page 31
Agenda Item 4



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 33
Agenda Item 4



Page 34
Agenda Item 4



Page 35
Agenda Item 4



Page 36
Agenda Item 4



Page 37
Agenda Item 4



Page 38
Agenda Item 4



Page 39
Agenda Item 4



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 41
Agenda Item 4



Page 42
Agenda Item 4



Page 43
Agenda Item 4



Page 44
Agenda Item 4



Page 45
Agenda Item 4



Page 46
Agenda Item 4



Page 47
Agenda Item 4



Page 48
Agenda Item 4



Page 49
Agenda Item 4



Page 50
Agenda Item 4



Page 51
Agenda Item 4



Page 52
Agenda Item 4



Page 53
Agenda Item 4



Page 54
Agenda Item 4



Page 55
Agenda Item 4



Page 56
Agenda Item 4



Page 57
Agenda Item 4



Page 58
Agenda Item 4



Page 59
Agenda Item 4



Page 60
Agenda Item 4



Page 61
Agenda Item 4



Page 62
Agenda Item 4



Page 63
Agenda Item 4



Page 64
Agenda Item 4



Page 65
Agenda Item 4



Page 66
Agenda Item 4



Page 67
Agenda Item 4



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 69
Agenda Item 4



Page 70
Agenda Item 4



Page 71
Agenda Item 4



Page 72
Agenda Item 4



Page 73
Agenda Item 4



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 75
Agenda Item 4



Page 76
Agenda Item 4



Page 77
Agenda Item 4



Page 78
Agenda Item 4



Page 79
Agenda Item 4



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 81
Agenda Item 4



Page 82
Agenda Item 4



Page 83
Agenda Item 4



Page 84
Agenda Item 4



Page 85
Agenda Item 4



Page 86
Agenda Item 4



Page 87
Agenda Item 4



Page 88
Agenda Item 4



Page 89
Agenda Item 4



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 91
Agenda Item 4



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 93
Agenda Item 4



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 95
Agenda Item 4



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 97
Agenda Item 4



Page 98
Agenda Item 4



Page 99
Agenda Item 4



Page 100
Agenda Item 4



Page 101
Agenda Item 4



This page is intentionally left blank



          Central Beds Public Hearing 29/30 September 2014 

         Defence Document/8
 
April 2013/Cllr Ian Robinson  

The Central Beds Monitoring Office advised that any defence documents should be received by the 

Monitoring Office on or before 8 September 2014.  

This Defence Document/8 April 2013/Cllr Ian Robinson, referred to as Document, together with the 

appendices as separate pages is requested to be given to each member of the Public Hearing Panel, 

including the Central Beds Clerk and the Central Beds Legal Officer assisting the Panel.  

The Document is Cllr Robinson’s response to the complaints in the Complaints Investigation Report 

6 June 2014, referred to as Report. The majority of Cllr Robinson’s comments refer to the 

complaints of 8/4/13 on pages 1-10. Further comments from Cllr Robinson, not directly related to 

the 8/4/13, are on Page 11.  

No.s 1-7 and Appendices A-T refer to the Report and Y1-Y14 appendices, refer to the Document. 

References to page No.s are to this Document unless otherwise stated. 

Contents 

Background history. Outline of the evening of 8/4/13                                                                          Page 2                    

 

Response to 1 - Summary of complaints against Cllr Robinson                                                           Page 3 

 

Response to 2 - Corroboration of issues by complainants                                                                    Page 3 

 

Grouping of 3 - Alleged breaches of the Code of Conduct                                                                    Page 4 

 

Response to alleged breaches above: Details of the evening of 8/4/13 & Grouping on Page 4    Page 5                  

 

Response to 4 – Consultation with the Independent Person                                                               Page 6 

 

Response to 5 and 6 - Comments from complainants on the Draft Report. Conclusion                 Page 6      

                            

Comments from the Minutes, interview and correspondence                                                            Page 7   

   

Conclusion from Cllr Robinson                                                                                                                   Page 8 

 

Appendices Y1-Y14                                                                                                                                     Page 10 

                                                                              

 Cllr Robinson’s response to complaints unrelated to 8/4/13                                                            Page 11                                                                                            

 

 

                        Facts & factual comments are in Black print and/or underlined 

 

                      Perceptions, opinions and fictional comments are in Italic Purple Print 

1 

Page 103
Agenda Item 4



 Background history The events leading up to the evening of the 8/4/13, were that both 

Northill Parish Council and the parish residents, had chosen one of two Affordable Housing sites in 

Upper Caldecote. Since both Council and parish residents did not wish to see both sites developed in 

Upper Caldecote, the first choice site was on Ickwell Road. However, as a result of a Council Planning 

committee recommendation at a meeting on the 25/3/13, the Council resolved to support a Central 

Beds planning application for the second choice site on Biggleswade Road. The Planning meeting 

fuelled village resident anger, in that copies of the planning application for the Biggleswade Road 

site were only available at the start of the Planning meeting. Also, the Clerk appeared to control the 

meeting, despite the Chair of the Planning Committee being present.  

It needs to be emphasised that the Biggleswade Road site was not the second choice site of the 

Village of Upper Caldecote. Nearly 40 village residents considered this site to be beset with material 

problems and were concerned that the reasons for the developers not to progess with the Ickwell 

Road site had not been fully explained or debated. However, the Clerk sent the planning 

recommendation to Central Beds Planning the same evening, thus removing the opportunity for the 

application to be fully considered by the public before the next Full Council meeting on the 8/4/13. 

In an Email from GUHG, the developers, had already confirmed in December 2012, its decision not to 

progress with the chosen site. Yet, according to the site owner, plans had been drawn up for this site 

and GUHG had stated that it might eventually develop both sites in the village. Furthermore, Emails 

from GUHG, in January 2013, made it abundantly clear that certain information was not for the 

public domain, APPENDIX Y1. Although these decisions were confirmed in the Council Newsletter in 

the Winter of 2012/2013, no detailed explanation was publicised and remains so until the present 

time. Several days before the meeting on the 8/4/13, the Ickwell Road site owner made a written 

statement to Cllr Robinson, confirming that he had always been willing to sell his site and would 

match any offers on other sites. Furthermore, according to the owner, his site had been identified 

and approved by CUHG and Central Beds Planning, APPENDIX Y2.  

Outline of the evening of 8/4/13 An objection document representing the concerns 

of nearly 40 village residents, relating to the Biggleswade Road site, was presented to a Council 

meeting on the 8/4/13. In addtion, Cllr Robinson considered that it was his duty to bring the 

statement from the Ickwell Road site owner, to the Council’s attention and request an explanation 

of why this preferred site was not being progressed.  

However, the meeting failed to follow protocol in a number of ways. Firstly, there was no debate on 

the objection document and the Minutes from the Planning meeting were unavailable. Secondly, the 

Chair was unable to answer Cllr Robinson’s questions and passed them on to the Clerk. Thirdly, the 

Clerk was permitted to respond and only partly answered the questions and dismissed both the 

questions and statement as being irrelevant. Fourthly, there were uncontrolled interruptions from 

Councillors. Fifthly, the Chair failed to advise or explain to the public, the reason for the requested 

confidentiality of the matter from GUHG. Sixthly, the chair did not express any concern to the public, 

that GUHG had gone against the wishes of both Council and village residents, Lastly, the Clerk 

walked out and the Chair abandoned the meeting. 

2 

Page 104
Agenda Item 4



Response to 1. Summary of complaints against Cllr Robinson 

All seven complaints refer to the Nolan Principle of Leadership This Principle is related to events 

that allegedly took place whilst Cllr Robinson was questioning the Chair at a meeting of Northill 

Parish Council on the 8/4/13. Three complaints refer only to Leadership. Four complaints refer to 

five other Nolan principles, APPENDIX H. Four Councillors make further complaints not directly 

related to the 8/4/13. 

Response to 2. Corroboration of issues by complainants  

2.1 Although the individual complaints are generally corroborated regarding the 8/4/13, there are 

glaring differences in the detail. The alleged time of Cllr Robinson’s questions and statement to the 

Chair, varies from 10 minutes, APPENDIX I, to one hour, APPENDICES D & E, but the meeting only 

lasted 51 minutes, APPENDIX T. The Clerk’s interview with the Investigating Officer mentions Cllr 

Robinson’s apology and glowing report of the Clerk and of her recommendation of a Councillor 

Training Course, which Cllr Robinson subsequently attended, APPENDIX I. 

2.2   The 7 complaints are detailed in APPENDICES A to G, and grouped on Page 4.  

2.2.1 The alleged Email from Sam Vernon does not appear in the Appendices. APPENDIX K is actually 

a letter written by John Davies to the Biggleswade Chronicle in April 2013. This was forwarded by 

Sam Vernon to Nick Pearce and then forwarded again to John Atkinson. John Davies also wrote 

another support letter to John Atkinson on the 25/9/13 APPENDIX L. 

There are also detailed accounts that do not corroborate with the detail of the complaints. These are 

the Minutes of the meeting, APPENDIX T, the interview with the Clerk on the 1/10/13, APPENDIX I 

and correspondence from Jill Parker, APPENDIX Y3 Jean Cordy, APPENDIX Y4 and  

APPENDIX Y5.  Extracts from these accounts can be found on Page 7 of this Defence Document. 

2.2.2 Cllr Robinson comments as follows - I pay respect to the experience of Alan Bigg and I consider 

his observations to be fairly accurate. However these issues, big or small, are still important because 

they sometimes have been raised by parish residents at previous meetings. Councillors often appear 

disinterested in following up these matters. Alan Bigg might remember that under the previous 

Chairman, much more time was allowed for constructive debate and challenging questions. My 

memories of Cllr Milton would be of keeping a close scrutiny on things by numerous questions to the 

previous Chair.  

Mr Bigg, being a resident of Northill, has not personally experienced the trauma of some residents in 

the proposed development in Upper Caldecote. If he had carefully noted that David Milton, the 

Chairman, was not leading the meeting and was failing to answer the questions relating to a very big 

issue, he might have expressed different views. I am also surprised that Mr Bigg’s previous 

experience of meeting protocol did not lead him to question the role of both the Clerk and Chair 

during the questioning. 

3 

Page 105
Agenda Item 4



 Grouping of 3.Alleged breaches of the Code of Conduct (Ref 3.1.1, 3.1.2,    

3.1.3  in the Report) and APPENDICES A to G complaints made by Councillors. Complaints are 

grouped according to Cllr Robinson’s views.  Similar complaints are not listed. 

         FACTS (black print)                           PERCEPTIONS                      OPINIONS 
Disorder                                            Repeatedly made statements   Bringing Council into disrepute                                                                                          

Meeting abandoned                       contrary to previous                   Harassment and bullying  

Clerk walked out                             resolutions                                    Breached NPC Code of Leadership   

Residents were unhappy                                                                      The Clerk APPENDIX A 

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------                                                                                                                   

Clerk distressed                               Refused to let anyone speak     Erratic & inappropriate behaviour 

Apology made                                 Talking for 20 minutes                Playing to the audience                                                                                                                       

Pointed at Councillor                     Out of control                               Apology unacceptable 

Said ‘ what’s his name’                  Hostile questioning to Clerk       Disregarded Standing Orders                                               

Not accept Clerk’s  answers          Prevented Chair from chairing  Disgraceful behaviour                                                            

Disagreed with resolutions           Prevented others from   

Reconsider application                  speaking                    

Disgraceful proceedings                                                                        Cllr Papworth APPENDIX B 

-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

                                                           Received adequate answers      Failed to set an example                                                                                              

                                                                                                                   Behaviour might be excused 

                                                                                                                   Aggressive performance 

                                                                                                                   Cllr Kay APPENDIX C 

-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

Clerk nearly tears                           An hour long rant                         Failed to value Council’s Officer I 

Cannot bring documents           Made faces and glared                  Agrees with right to raise questions                                                                                               

 to support this                               Ad hominem attacks                    Belittled two Councillors 

                                                          on Clerk                                           Disrespectful to the  Chair 

                                                                                                                    Cllr Momen APPENDIX D 

-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

(Asked) to be allowed to finish    Banged hand on table                  Failed to regard protocol                                                        

Three other members had           Gesticulating to Clerk,                                                                                                               

 their hands up                               Chairman & other members 

 Have not attached any                 shouting them down 

 documents                                     Talking for about one hour 

                                                          Chair attempted to break                                                     

                                                          into tirade (of Cllr Robinson) 

                                                          Raised his voice 

                                                          Despite being asked  

                                                          did not cease his rant                   Cllr Mandley APPENDIX E 

-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

                                                          Talked over the responses 

                                                           of the Clerk                                     Cllr Wilcox APPENDIX F       

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------                                                                      

Does not acknowledge that 

Resolutions are not open to                                                                                                     

further discussion                                                                                   Cllr Bennett  APPENDIX G                                                                                                   

 

4 

Page 106
Agenda Item 4



Response to 3. Alleged breaches of the Code Conduct: Details of the 

evening of 8/4/13 outlined on Page 2 & Grouping on Page 4 

FACTS These are taken from the FACT column on Page 4, the Minutes of the meeting, APPENDIX T 

and Cllr Robinson’s observations. The facts are corroborated by the correspondence in the Report 

Page 2, the Independent person, the Report Page 5 and the conclusion by the Investigating Officer, 

the Report Page 7.  Also, this Document Page 7. 

Some village residents were unhappy with the Councils recommendation of the Biggleswade Road 

site and presented the Council with 13 copies of an objection document listing the reasons for the 

material objections to this site, APPENDIX T.  The documents were not acknowledged by the Chair.                                   

Later in the meeting during ‘Matters Arising’, I asked the Chair to explain why the Ickwell Road site 

was not being progressed, but the Chair passed the question to the Clerk. I advised the meeting of 

the willingness of the owner to sell his site and according to the owner, the positive response from 

the developers and Central Beds Planning. Members of the public then witnessed the disgraceful 

proceedings that followed, including interruptions from Councillors and poor control by the Chair. 

After partly responding to the questions and statement and dismissing them both, the Clerk later 

walked out, APPENDIX T. The Chair did not have to abandon the meeting and the Vice Chair could 

have recorded the Minutes after the Clerk walked out. 

The unrepresentative decision to recommend a different site was not fully explained or discussed. 

The new, possibly confidential statement, that I presented to the meeting, APPENDIX Y2, caused the 

Clerk to be distressed and possibly harassed. I deny that I was personally responsible for causing 

either distress or harassment and I consider the accusation of bullying to be outrageous. 

Pointing at Cllr Kay was not intended to be offensive in any way and I asked another Councillor 

‘what’s your name’ as I had genuinely forgotten it, being accustomed to calling him Tony. 

Furthermore, the comment served as a little light relief during his interruption. Cllr Kay did not 

personally complain and the other Councillor was not one of the official complainants. I asked the 

Chair to be allowed to finish as I was getting interruptions from Councillors although they had their 

hands up.  A verbal apology was made to the Clerk immediately after the meeting and later by Email 

to the Councillors. None of the complainants had evidence to support their claims of my allegedly 

breaking the Councillor Code of Conduct. 

 

PERCEPTIONS, Page 4. I deny all these fictional allegations. I repeat that the whole meeting only 

lasted 51 minutes and there is no reference to the allegations in the Minutes APPENDIX T 

 

OPINIONS, Page 4. I deny most of these opinions. The comments from Cllr Kay - ‘(Cllr Robinson’s) 

Behaviour might be excused’ and those of Cllr Momen – ‘agrees with Cllr Robinson’s right to 

question’ lessen the quality of the complaints.  Also, since most of the Report is in reference to my 

approximate 10 minute questioning on the 8/4/13, it would suggest that it has been somewhat 

inappropriate to take the complaints to Public Hearing. I completely deny the allegation that I have 

brought the Council into disrepute. On the contrary, I believe the seven failings mentioned at the 

bottom of page 2 were the main cause of bringing the Council into disrepute.  

                                                                                   

 
5 

Page 107
Agenda Item 4



Response to 4.Consultation with the Independent Person:  
 

Martin Leppert refers to Cllr Robinson’s apology after the meeting and subsequently attending a 

Councillor Training Course as mitigation for any alleged actions. Mr Leppert also notes that... ‘the 

history leading up to the meeting, the manner it which was conducted and controlled, all helped to 

bring about this rather unsatisfactory event... ’ APPENDIX N 

Response to 5. Comments from the complainants on Draft report  

Cllr Robinson has responded to many of these comments earlier on Page 5. The support from Mr 

Davies is based on his observations and not because of a common concern. APPENDIX O.  

 Response to 6. Conclusions (by the Investigating Officer)  

Cllr Robinson’s comments   

The Investigating Officer’s comments corroborate those of the witnesses on Page 7. I did take the 

opportunity to direct questions to the Chair, not the Clerk. The questions were repeated because 

appropriate answers were not forthcoming from the Chair. I felt uncomfortable because the meeting 

was not following correct protocol in that the Clerk had been asked to address me on the Chair’s 

behalf. The accusations by the Clerk of being harassed and bullied are invalid for a number of 

reasons.  

Firstly the questions were directed to the Chair, not the Clerk.  

Secondly, the questions were perceived as being insistent or harassing. The questions were calmly 

repeated, through necessity, and then followed up with a statement from the owner of the Ickwell 

Road site. In my opinion, the statement caught the whole meeting off guard, because the reason for 

not progressing the Ickwell Road site was not for the public domain. This put the Clerk and the 

Councillors in an awkward position. One could even suggest a harassed position.  

Thirdly, although it is likely that the clerk was harassed, which in the context of the allegation means 

being troubled or worried. There is a difference in meaning between ‘Cllr Robinson allegedly 

harassed (troubled) the Clerk’ and ‘The Clerk was harassed (troubled) by being put in a awkward 

position’ or as one witness stated...’ The Clerk was left out to dry’. 

Lastly, it is inconceivable that the Clerk was allegedly bullied. This means to be hurt, frightened or 

browbeaten. To suggest that the Clerk was at the receiving end of a bully, that is myself, is a serious 

and outrageous accusation. 

While accepting the spirit of the Investigating Officer’s conclusion, I do not consider I have been 

broken any aspect of the Councillor Code of Conduct. However, I have always supported the  

recommendation  to resume normal Council business as opposed to continuing internal disputes. 

The  words of Martin Leppert on the updated report echoes this sentiment APPENDIX S. 

 

                                                        6 

Page 108
Agenda Item 4



Comments from Minutes, interview and correspondence re 8/3/13   

Minutes of the Council meeting 8/4/13 - ‘IR (Cllr Robinson 9.1 asked clerk to detail the various 

responses from relevant parties to query why the Ickwell Road site had not been progressed. Clerk 

explained that she had circulated all responses to councillors, but did not have a copy of the 

correspondence to hand...he had spoken to the landowner of the ickwell Rd (site) who indicated to 

him that they are prepared to sell the land....council should reconsider the resolution made by the 

planning committee...Clerk responded this is unfortunately irrelevant’ APPENDIX T2.  

Mrs Leanne Bacon, Clerk. Taken from an interview with the Investigating Officer – ‘Until the parish 

Council meeting of 8
th

 April 2013, she felt that she had a reasonably good relationship with Cllr 

Robinson. (Referring to the meeting on 8/4/13) the Clerk to the Council took over answering the 

questions and there followed a quite heated and animated exchange between the Clerk and Cllr 

Robinson. This continued for about 10 minutes until the Clerk walked out...’ APPENDIX I. 

John Davies Ex Clerk–‘The Chair should have answered the questions raised by Cllr Robinson 

without bringing the Clerk into the debate and should have stopped the harassment of at least two 

other councillors who verbally attacked the speaker’ (Cllr Robinson) APPENDIX K  – ‘ the Clerk took 

over answering the questions although they were addressed to the chair...although Cllr Robinson 

may have been hard and insistent with his questioning he was getting increasingly frustrated that 

the Clerk, not the Chair was answering his questions and not giving answers to the questions he was 

raising.’ APPENDIX L. 

 Jill Parker parishioner,  – ‘Cllr Robinson asked for more detailed clarification on a particular matter, 

and Chairman then requested the Parish Clerk,, Mrs Leanne Bacon, to provide more information. 

She did so by answering Cllr Robinson direct. He addressed another question to the Chairman who 

again asked the Clerk to clarify. She again, directed her answer to Cllr Robinson instead of normal 

protocol which would be to reply to the Chairman...At no time, to my knowledge, did Cllr Robinson 

address any questions direct to the Clerk...Cllr Robinson requested more detail on the subject, he 

was enquiring about, the Clerk began to speak, then arose from her seat and left the room.’ 

APPENDIX Y3. 

 Jean Cordy, parishioner, – ‘The Chair allowed the secretary (Clerk) to run the meeting which in any 

forum is not the role of the secretary. The overriding impression is that the secretary had ideas above 

her station and not least a complete lack of interest in our case...’APPENDIX Y4. 

, parishioner, - ‘It was not ( Cllr) Robinson that has brought the council into disrepute 

– on the contrary, it was the way the Chairman, Clerk and other members of the council behaved by 

acting as they have, that has brought the a feeling of no confidence in the Parish council and has 

brought itself into disrepute. Many onlookers were appalled at the chairman for not chairing the 

meeting and astonished that the clerk seems to call the shots in certain discussions.’   APPENDIX Y5.  

 

Martin Leppert, Independent Person, reviewed the complaints and relevant papers – ‘I do not 

think Cllr Robinson should shoulder all the blame as it would appear he felt he was being obstructed 

in getting appropriate information from the parish Council.’ APPENDIX N.     

7 

Page 109
Agenda Item 4



 Conclusion from Cllr Ian Robinson Cllr Robinson has responded to the alleged 

breaches of the Code of Conduct regarding the evening of the 8/4/13, together with documental 

evidence for his defence in the APPENDICES. The main issue is the Clerk’s complaint of Cllr 

Robinson’s alleged breach of the Council’s Code of conduct regarding Leadership, Appendix H 

during about 10 minutes of questioning the Chair by Cllr Robinson causing disorder. 

I repeat that, in my opinion, much of the blame for the disorder was due to the failings of the Chair, 

who has since been voted out of office. These failings are corroborated in witness statements  on 

Page 7. For some inexplicable reason, the Clerk chose to blame me with allegations of harassment 

and bullying and sent a formal complaint to the Monitoring Office on the 9/4/13, copying to all 

Councillors, but excluding myself. An inspection of the Councillors’ complaints, that defend both the 

Clerk and the Chair, reveals a barrage of hostile, uncorroborated complaints about my alleged 

behaviour in questioning the Clerk, when my questions were addressed to the Chair. There are also 

incredulous comments on unrelated issues and the Councillors appear to use this opportunity to 

vent their feelings and wishes to have me removed from office. This very disturbing unprecedented 

hounding continues to the present day from several Councillors and the Clerk, See Page 11. The 

main gist of my defence is the absence of any substantial factual evidence, apart from pointing and 

forgetting names. I do not consider that these factual misdemeanours are a breach of Councillor 

Conduct and for the issues to be taken to a Public Hearing is beyond comprehension. There is no 

evidence that I said anything or did anything that was seriously out of order. The complaints of 

allegedly banging my hand on the table, ranting on for an hour, frightening other Councillors and the 

other imaginary observations, are completely untrue and total nonsense. The allegations, some 

factual, made during the debate were based on a personal impression of what was seen and what 

was heard. On the one hand, seven complainants alleged I was harassing and bullying, whilst other 

attendees at the meeting gave a different view. The Minutes do not record evidence of harassment 

and bullying and I would suggest the comments by the Clerk referring to being harassed by me, was 

a perception in common with the other perceptions and opinions grouped on Page 4 

Much has been made of the reason for my apology as being evidence of guilt, which I completely 

deny. Any distress felt by the Clerk, was caused by the sequence of events during the debate.  John 

Davies comments...’she (the Clerk) was left hanging out to dry ...by her biggest supporter, namely 

David Milton’ (Chair) APPENDIX K. Any apology by me was a token of showing concern for the Clerk 

and the disgraceful proceedings of the meeting. Please note that APPENDIX K is not from Sam 

Vernon but from John Davies. See 2.2.1. Page 3.3 

The unfortunate demise of the previous Clerk, whose fraudulent actions, unnoticed by the Council, 

were unravelled by the present Clerk. This praiseworthy detection has for some reason, raised the 

profile of the Clerk in the eyes of Council, to a position well above her duties. Any unpopular 

questioning of Council matters is often answered by the Clerk as opposed to the Chair. In this 

capacity, most Councillors believe that the Clerk, as the Responsible Officer, is always correct.  

Councillors rarely question her actions and any challenging questions by residents or myself, are 

often met with unpleasantness from some Councillors and protection of the Clerk to the point of 

unbelief. This is undoubtedly what happened during my questioning on the 8/4/13 and sadly 

continues. 

8 

Page 110
Agenda Item 4



Any indication that the Clerk might resign due to a burden of overwork allegedly caused by  

responding to Freedom of Information FOI and Subject Access SA, requests, is awarded. This 

amounts to more protection of the Clerk, an increase in overtime decided by the Clerk, and silencing 

the questioner whether it is a parishioner or Councillor like myself. I would suggest that Council 

should take a serious note of the excessive time and money wasted in fighting legal issues against 

parishioners and myself. I say waste, as the Council has already lost two legal battles against two 

parishioners. However, the Clerk and 6 Councillors, against the advice of the Investigating Officer, 

often appear blinkered in their relentless determination to press the present complaints to a Public 

Hearing. On top of all this, the Clerk and the newly voted Chair carry on, regardless of time, money 

and effort, with their active attempts to continue to fight the issues the Council has already lost. This 

is regardless of the Council’s  priority of acting in the best interest of the electorate, APPENDICES Y6 

and Y7.  The 5  FOI requests were sent over 24 hours were repeat requests previously unanswered. 

At the recent Council meeting on 1/9/14, the Council was overwhelmingly sympathetic to the 

alleged burden of work of the Clerk dealing with legal issues caused by the Council itself. As a result, 

a crucial residential issue of drainage affecting several homes with residential concerns raised over 

several years, was once again stalled. My offer to assist, by obtaining quotes for the drainage work, 

and hence reduce the alleged burden of work, were refused. I decided not to press the matter on 

behalf of residents attending, at the risk of being accused of further harassment and bullying.  

In my opinion, the actions of the Council in closing ranks to support the Clerk and its unwillingness to 

listen to the views of parishioners and the views of Councillors that support the parishioners, is 

unhealthy. It demonstrates a corporate character of inflexibility and unwillingness to act in a manner 

that the electorate have requested and deserve. I have noticed these Council traits during my term in 

office and refer to the Northill Parish Plan submitted to the Council in 2008. Out of all the 

recommendations to the Council, by the parish residents and after several years work, very little has 

been achieved in the Parish, APPENDICES Y8a/b. 

 I sincerely hope that my position and influence on the Northill Parish Neighbourhood Planning 

Group can help to reverse the trend and some positive action will be seen in the future.  

 I consider it is my duty as a Councillor to question issues, sometimes robustly, on behalf of the 

electorate, to seek the truth.  This is what I have done and will continue to do while I remain in 

office. If the Clerk and certain Councillors consider my continuing actions to be inappropriate and 

give cause to formally complain, then that is a privilege of their position. However, I would maintain 

that accurate objective comments, listening and representing the views of the electorate and a 

willingness to reconsider previous decisions, in the light of fresh information, should be an overriding 

factor when considering Councillor Conduct. Although there are 6 Councillor Complaints, the Council 

actions against me over the last 18 months have been somewhat Draconian, e.g. APPENDICES 

Y13a/b.  It has not created a healthy environment for a supposedly democratic and representative 

authority. The Parish deserves better than a corporate body that is inflexible and opposes or ignores 

so many things that its residents have requested. Northill Parish Council needs to have a good look at 

itself, otherwise it will be the cause and victim of its own disreputable actions.  

Cllr Ian Robinson 8
th

 September 2014 

9 

Page 111
Agenda Item 4



                                 

Y APPENDICES as separate pages 

   Y1   Email from Geoff Evans GUHG re matters not for the public domain   Y2   

Statement from owner re willingness to sell Ickwell Road site  

   Y3   Support witness letter from Jill Parker re 8/4/13 

   Y4   Support witness letter from Jean Cordy re 8/4/13 

   Y5   Support witness letter from re 8/4/13 

    Y6   Clerk’s Email to Alistair Burt MP re FOI and SA requests 
 

   Y7   Cllr Papworth’s Email to Alistair Burt MP re FOI and SA requests    

   Y8a/b  

           Comments on Parish Plan 2008 confirming Council had achieved little 

  Y9    Minutes of the Planning meeting on 25/3/13  

 Y10   Email from the Clerk refusing FOI request  

Y11    Email from Cllr Papworth refusing FOI request 

Y12    Email from the Clerk suggesting Cllr Robinson has memory problems 

Y13a/b 

          Resolution from Cllr Bennett requesting non communication with Clerk  

Y14    Witness statement regarding inaccurate financial figures and abuse 

 

                                                                                 

 

 

10 

 

Page 112
Agenda Item 4



Cllr Robinson’s responses to complaints unrelated to 8/4/13 

Cllr Papworth 3.1.1 1 - At the Planning meeting on the 25/3/13. I was in the public gallery hence 

references to monopolising and voting are invalid, APPENDIX Y9. 

Cllr Mandley 3.1.3.5 - I supported the views of the two parishioners in winning their two appeals 

against the Council. The Council alleged that the parishioners had caused the resignation of the 

previous Clerk, yet the resignation letter does not name the two parishioners as being the cause. The 

parishioners continue to be silenced despite winning the appeals. In a separate complaint*. Cllr 

Mandley makes some very serious allegations against me  and this is the 

subject of a separate ongoing enquiry by the Monitoring Office, the details of which, I have been  

asked not to divulge. Cllr Mandley has also questioned my integrity privately and publicly in relation 

to the same 2 parishioners. * I have recently learned that this complaint was withdrawn on 13/8/14.  

CllrKay 5.1.4 – The articles are the comments of Caldecote Voices which are submitted by me to the 

Biggleswade Chronicle. Any grounds for misconduct here are nulified by the comments of the 

Investigating Officer in 5.1.5 

Cllr Momen 5.2.1 – 5.2.4 – I have never accused the Clerk of withholding information despite the 

fact that both the Clerk and Cllr Papworth, as acting Chair have refused certain FO1 requests, 

APPENDICES Y10 and Y11. The references to goading and sarcasm are completely unfounded.  

Since the Clerk recommended that Matters Arising be removed from Council agenda items, the 

Annual Parish Meeting on the 31/3/14, provided an opportunity to ask some previously unanswered 

questions from the public gallery. The questions were copied to the Clerk the following day, 

APPENDIX P, Page 2. The response from the Clerk was that I have memory problems, APPENDIX 

Y12. This reply from the Clerk is with the Monitoring Office and is part of a separate complaint. 

The Clerk does not acknowledge my greeting at meetings and since the 8/4/13 her correspondence 

to me is very formal. I am now requested not to communicate with Clerk until June 2015, as resolved 

by an Employment Grievance Panel of Cllrs Bennett, Kay & Mandley, (the Clerk being Cllr Papworth 

on 13/5/14. I declined to attend the hearing, as I was given one working days notice, disallowed 

representation and refused requested documents to prepare a defence. APPENDIX Y13. 

Cllr Momen APPENDIX P. I was in the public gallery at the the APM on the 31/3/14 and witness 

statements confirm that the Clerk was unable to provide accurate figures to questions on finance.  I  

also received repeated abusive comments from a Councillor. APPENDIX Y14. I consider comments 

about improving my conduct are inappropriate as I refute that I have ever breached any Councillor 

Code of Conduct during my term of office. 

Cllr Papworth APPENDIX B, questions my honesty over pecuniary interests of which I have none. In 

addition, Cllr Papworth apologised for wrongly suggesting that I had passed a confidential letter to 

two parishioners 

 Cllr Ian Robinson 8
th

 September 2014          

Page 113
Agenda Item 4



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 115
Agenda Item 4



Page 116
Agenda Item 4



Page 117
Agenda Item 4



Page 118
Agenda Item 4



Page 119
Agenda Item 4



Page 120
Agenda Item 4



Page 121
Agenda Item 4



Page 122
Agenda Item 4



Page 123
Agenda Item 4



Page 124
Agenda Item 4



Page 125
Agenda Item 4



Page 126
Agenda Item 4



Page 127
Agenda Item 4



Page 128
Agenda Item 4



Page 129
Agenda Item 4



Page 130
Agenda Item 4



Page 131
Agenda Item 4



Page 132
Agenda Item 4



Page 133
Agenda Item 4



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 135
Agenda Item 4



Page 136
Agenda Item 4



Page 137
Agenda Item 4



Page 138
Agenda Item 4



Page 139
Agenda Item 4



Page 140
Agenda Item 4



Page 141
Agenda Item 4



Page 142
Agenda Item 4



Page 143
Agenda Item 4



Page 144
Agenda Item 4



Page 145
Agenda Item 4



Page 146
Agenda Item 4



Page 147
Agenda Item 4



Page 148
Agenda Item 4



Page 149
Agenda Item 4



Page 150
Agenda Item 4



Page 151
Agenda Item 4



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 153
Agenda Item 4



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 155
Agenda Item 4



Page 156
Agenda Item 4



Page 157
Agenda Item 4



Page 158
Agenda Item 4



 
 
 

APPENDIX (II) 
 
DECISION NOTICE DATED 14 OCTOBER 2014 

Page 159
Agenda Item 4



This page is intentionally left blank



Central Bedfordshire Council  
Re: Cllr I Robinson of Northill Parish Council (Ref: MON001.10976) 
Date: 14th October 2014 

Page 1 of 8 

 

STANDARDS SUB-COMMITTEE HEARING 

29th and 30th September 2014 

Consideration of whether 
Councillor I Robinson 

was in breach of the Councillors’ Code of Conduct  
of Northill Parish Council 

Case reference MON001.19706 

Localism Act 2011 

 

Members of the Hearing Sub-Committee:  Cllr K Matthews (Chairman) 

 Cllr D Bowater 

 Cllr D Jones 

 Cllr Mrs J Lawrence 

 Cllr A Shadbolt 

Legal Advisor to the 
Hearing 
 
Hearing Administrator 
 
Others Present 
 

Ms Melanie Clay, Monitoring Officer 
 
 
Mr Leslie Manning, Committee Service Officer 
 
Miss Maria Damigos, Corporate Lawyer 
Ms Mel Peaston, Committee Services Manager     
Mr Martin Leppert, Independent Person 
Mr Christopher Fogden, Independent Person 
 

Member: 
 
 
 
 

Cllr Ian Robinson 
 
Cllr Robinson is a member of Northill Parish Council and was a 
councillor at the time of the incident which gave rise to the 
allegations.  During the hearing Cllr Robinson was assisted by Mr 
Christopher Fogden as the Independent Person appointed under 
the Localism Act 2011. 
 

Investigating Officer Ms Lorna McShane, Solicitor 

Witnesses: 
 
 

Cllr Helen Papworth, Northill Parish Council 
Cllr Sally Mandley, Northill Parish Council 
Mrs Leanne Bacon, Clerk to Northill Parish Council 
Mrs Randle, Northill Parish resident 
Mr Davies, Northill Parish resident 
Mrs Parker, Northill Parish resident 
The Sub-Committee also heard from Cllr Mrs P.E. Turner, MBE, 
Member of Central Bedfordshire Council and Ward Member for 
Northill Parish 

DOCUMENTATION: 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Procedure for the hearing 

 Report of Investigating Officer, including appendices A - T 
to that report. This report was treated as containing exempt 
information until the Sub-Committee determined whether to 
exclude the press and public from the hearing. 
 

Page 161
Agenda Item 4



Central Bedfordshire Council  
Re: Cllr I Robinson of Northill Parish Council (Ref: MON001.10976) 
Date: 14th October 2014 

Page 2 of 8 

 

1 INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 The outcome of an investigation concerning seven complaints into Cllr Robinson was to be further 

considered at a hearing of the Standards Sub-Committee. 
 
1.2 The hearing took place at 10.30am on 29th September 2014, adjourned overnight and continued at 

10.30am on 30th September 2014 at Beadlow Manor Golf Club, Shefford.  The Standards Sub-
Committee consisted of Cllrs K Matthews, D Bowater, D Jones, Mrs J Lawrence and A Shadbolt, all 
being councillors of Central Bedfordshire Council.  The hearing was chaired by Cllr K Matthews. 

 
1.3 The subject member, Cllr I Robinson attended the hearing and was supported by Mr Christopher 

Fogden, appointed as an Independent Person under the Localism Act 2011. 
 
1.4 The Investigating Officer, Ms Lorna McShane, also attended the hearing. 
 
1.5 Martin Leppert, appointed as an Independent Person under the Localism Act 2011, was also in 

attendance to assist the Sub-Committee.  Mr Leppert was the Independent Person consulted by the 
Investigating Officer during the investigation into the complaints.   

 
1.6 The Monitoring Officer and legal advisor to the panel was Ms Melanie Clay, assisted by Miss Maria 

Damigos.  The hearing was clerked by Mr Leslie Manning, supported by Ms Mel Peaston. 
 
2. PROCEDURE  
 
2.1 The Chairman Cllr Matthews made reference to the Agenda which included the hearing procedure 

and the Investigating Officer’s final report.  He introduced the Sub-Committee, dealt with 
housekeeping and preliminary issues and went through the Agenda items.  He confirmed that the 
hearing was to be held in public. 

 
2.2  A member of the public indicated that they wished to film the hearing and this was facilitated. 
 
2.3 Having referred the Subject Member and Investigating Officer to the procedure the Chairman 

indicated that subject to timing he anticipated calling the Ward Member to comment on her views of 
the behaviour of Cllr Robinson after hearing the witnesses for the Investigating Officer.  The 
Chairman indicated this change in the order of witnesses was being accommodated due to the time 
constraints of other business of the Ward Member and all parties agreed. 

 
3 PRELIMINARY DOCUMENTS 
 
3.1 The Sub-Committee was provided with the investigation report and its annexes together with a 

defence document submitted by the subject member in sufficient time to enable preparation in 
advance of the hearing.    

 
3.2 Prior to the hearing there was an agreed exchange of witnesses statements which were relied upon 

by the Subject Member and the Investigating Officer in presenting their cases. 
 
3.3 The hearing was advised that although the Agenda documents provided to the Sub-Committee 

contained exempt information, those parts of the documents referred to or relied upon during the 
course of the hearing would become public as the Sub-Committee had determined that the matter 
would be heard in public. 

 
3.4 The complaints all related to one set of circumstances, namely that during the Northill Parish Council 

meeting of 8th April 2013 the Subject Member’s behaviour breached the Northill Parish Council 
Councillors’ Code of Conduct.  

 

 

Page 162
Agenda Item 4



Central Bedfordshire Council  
Re: Cllr I Robinson of Northill Parish Council (Ref: MON001.10976) 
Date: 14th October 2014 

Page 3 of 8 

 

4 PARAGRAPHS OF THE CODE OF CONDUCT CONSIDERED RELEVANT AT THE TIME OF THE 
ALLEGATION 

 
4.1 The Investigating Officer stated that the relevant paragraphs of the Northill Councillors’ Code of 

Conduct were: 
 
 “4.14 Members must set an example by their behaviour and shall act in a way that enhances 

public trust and confidence in the integrity of the Council and its Members 
4.15 Members must show respect and courtesy to others 

 4.16 Members should value the Council’s officers and work alongside them to achieve the 
Council’s objectives.  Members must on no account behave in a manner that might constitute 
bullying.” 

  
5 SUMMARY OF THE INVESTIGATING OFFICER’S REPORT 
 
5.1 All of the complaints corroborate each other and set out the same version of events on the evening of 

8th April 2013. As there was no dispute as to the facts that led to the complaints being made the 
Investigating Officer interviewed Leanne Bacon, the Clerk to Northill Parish Council, and Cllr 
Robinson, the Subject Member. 

 
5.2 Based on evidence set out in the Investigating Officer’s report, the additional information received 

from members of the public and after consultation with the Independent Person the Investigating 
Officer concluded that Cllr Robinson had behaved as alleged. 

 
5.3 The Investigating Officer concluded that Cllr Robinson had breached the Northill Councillors’ Code of 

Conduct in failing to set an example by his behaviour; failing to act in a way that enhances public trust 
and confidence in the integrity of the Council and its Members; failing to show respect and courtesy to 
others and; failing to value the Council’s officers and work alongside them, in that he behaved in a 
manner that might constitute bullying. 

 
5.4 The Investigating Officer recommended that a local resolution be sought to conclude the matter. 
 
6. EVIDENCE SUBMITTED BY THE SUBJECT MEMBER IN RESPONSE TO THE INVESTIGATOR’S 

REPORT 
 
6.1 The Subject Member having received the Investigating Officer’s final report and being advised that 

the matter was going to a hearing was given the opportunity to put forward any further information 
which he wished to be considered by the Sub-Committee.  Cllr Robinson submitted a document 
disputing the facts set out in the report and the complaints.  He submitted that his actions did not 
breach the Nolan principles or paragraphs 4.14, 4.15 and 4.16 of the Northill Councillors’ Code of 
Conduct.  Specifically Cllr Robinson also denied that he: 

 
6.1.1 repeatedly made statements contravening  previous resolutions 
6.1.2 refused to let anyone else speak 
6.1.3 behaved in a way which was out of control 
6.1.4 prevented the Chairman from chairing the meeting 
6.1.5 talked for more than 10 minutes despite requests to stop 
6.1.6 received adequate answers to his questions 
6.1.7 banged his hand on the table and gesticulated 
6.1.8 shouted during this period 
6.1.9 talked over the responses of the Clerk 
6.1.10 displayed erratic and inappropriate behaviour 
6.1.11 played to the audience composed of members of the public 
6.1.12 disregarded Northill Parish Council’s Standing Orders 
6.1.13 behaved in an aggressive manner 
6.1.14 belittled two Northill Parish Councillors  
6.1.15 was disrespectful to the Chair 

Page 163
Agenda Item 4



Central Bedfordshire Council  
Re: Cllr I Robinson of Northill Parish Council (Ref: MON001.10976) 
Date: 14th October 2014 

Page 4 of 8 

 

6.1.16 failed to observe protocol. 
 
7 REPRESENTATIONS MADE BY THE INVESTIGATING OFFICER ON THE FINDINGS OF FACT 
 
7.1 In support of the findings in the Report the Investigating Officer called three witnesses: 
 
7.1.1 Cllr Helen Papworth, Chairman of Northill Parish Council 
7.1.2 Cllr Sally Mandley, Member of Northill Parish Council 
7.1.3 Mrs Leanne Bacon, Clerk to Northill Parish Council 
 
7.2 Each of the above witnesses read from their witness statement and provided evidence which was 

substantially the same as the details contained in their original complaints.  
 
7.3 After hearing from Cllr Papworth, the Sub-Committee indicated that due to the availability of Cllr Mrs 

P.E.Turner they would hear from her at that point and received her views on the meeting of 8th April 
2013 as Ward Member for Northill in the context of her considerable experience of Council meetings, 
having been a Member and Leader of both the previous Mid Beds District Council and current Central 
Bedfordshire Council.  Cllr Turner’s view was that Cllr Robinson’s contribution went past heated 
debate and that the Subject Member crossed the line of acceptable behaviour. 

 
7.4 The Subject Member had the opportunity to question all the witnesses. 
 
8 REPRESENTATIONS MADE BY THE SUBJECT MEMBER ON THE FINDINGS OF FACT 
 
8.1 The Subject Member called 3 witnesses: 
 
8.1.1 Mrs Randle 
8.1.2 Mr Davies 
8.1.3 Mrs Parker 
 
8.2 Each of the witnesses read from their witness statement evidencing their support of the Subject 

Member’s representation of the parishioners of Northill Parish.  Their evidence highlighted the 
following points: 

 
8.2.1 The Chairman of the meeting did not control the meeting 
8.2.2 The Clerk took over answering the questions 
8.2.3 There was dispute as to whether the Chairman had passed over the Subject Member’s questions to 

the Clerk for her to answer 
8.2.4 The Clerk was unable to provide full answers 
8.2.5 It was noisy at the meeting and the layout and acoustics of the room mean it is not easy for the public 

to hear what was being said. 
 
8.3 The Subject Member also read out his statement “Comments on the facts” denying that his actions 

had harassed and distressed the Clerk.  He then set out his suggestions as to what were the  
sequence of events that had resulted in her feeling harassed and distressed.  Cllr Robinson further 
stated that seven statements corroborated his view of the reasons for the harassment and distress. 

 
8.4 Cllr Robinson also stated that correct protocol had not been followed by the Chairman and the Clerk. 
 
9 FINDINGS OF FACT 
 
9.1 Based on the documents provided to the Sub-Committee and the submissions and evidence given for 

the Subject Member the Sub-Committee made the following findings of fact: 
 
9.1.1 Cllr Robinson directed questions to the Chairman, who did ask the Clerk to respond 

Page 164
Agenda Item 4



Central Bedfordshire Council  
Re: Cllr I Robinson of Northill Parish Council (Ref: MON001.10976) 
Date: 14th October 2014 

Page 5 of 8 

 

9.1.2 Cllr Robinson was persistent 
9.1.3 Cllr Robinson was enthusiastic 
9.1.4 Cllr Robinson tried to represent parishioners’ views at the meeting on 8th April 2013 
9.1.5 The Clerk did direct answers to Cllr Robinson 
9.1.6 The Clerk was the most appropriate person to give answers to Cllr Robinson’s questions as she had 

the paperwork and had knowledge of the issues 
9.1.7 The Chairman did not retain control of the meeting 
9.1.8 There was dialogue between Cllr Robinson and the Clerk 
9.1.9 The meeting on 8th April 2013 was disorderly 
9.1.10 The Chairman did not stop Cllr Robinson’s questions 
9.1.11 That Cllr Robinson harassed the Clerk based on the following definition from the Protection from 

Harassment Act 1997:- 
“harassing a person includes alarming the person or causing the person distress” (i.e. the effect the 
conduct has on the person is relevant) and the person whose course of conduct is in question ought 
to know that it amounts to (or involves) harassment of another if a reasonable person in possession 
of the same information would think the course of conduct amounted to (or involved) harassment of 
the other. 

9.1.12 The length of time of Cllr Robinson’s questioning was at least 10 minutes 
9.1.13 There was a misunderstanding by Councillor Robinson as to the status and use of confidential 

information in the meeting of 8th April 2013 
9.1.14 That Cllr Robinson monopolised the floor 
9.1.15 Cllr Robinson would not relinquish the floor 
9.1.16 That Cllr Robinson raised his voice 
9.1.17 That Cllr Robinson took advantage of the Chairman not having control of the meeting 
9.1.18 Cllr Robinson did not use offensive or insulting language. 
 
10 SUBMISSIONS MADE BY THE INVESTIGATING OFFICER REGARDING BREACH OF THE CODE 

OF CONDUCT 
 
10.1 The Investigating Officer submitted the following: 
 
10.2 That the relevant sections of Northill’s Councillors’ Code of Conduct are sufficiently similar to the 

former National Model Councillors’ Code of Conduct to make the use of the Standard’s Board 
guidance of relevance when looking at the standard of conduct here. 

 
10.3 That Guidance had indicated that a clear line must be drawn between the requirement to show 

respect to others and the freedom to disagree with their views and opinions.  It was the Investigating 
Officer’s view that the evidence heard by the Sub-Committee showed that this line had been crossed 
and that this was the view of the seven complainants and also the Ward Member. 

 
10.4 That the Subject Member’s behaviour is ongoing as evidenced by a grievance being raised by the 

Clerk and being upheld by the grievance panel convened by Northill Parish Council as employer, 
resulting in all correspondence  from Cllr Robinson to the Clerk being stopped. 

 
11 SUBMISSIONS MADE BY THE SUBJECT MEMBER REGARDING BREACH OF THE CODE OF 

CONDUCT 
 
11.1 Cllr Robinson referred to his document “Comments on the Code of Conduct” submitted to the panel 

and stated that although his questioning at the meeting was persistent it was not such as to breach 
paragraph 4.14 of the Councillors’ Code of Conduct (“Members must set an example by their 
behaviour and shall act in a way that enhances public trust and confidence in the integrity of the 
Council and its Members”) as he was in fact attempting to promote transparency and show the 
integrity of the Council. 

 
 
 

Page 165
Agenda Item 4



Central Bedfordshire Council  
Re: Cllr I Robinson of Northill Parish Council (Ref: MON001.10976) 
Date: 14th October 2014 

Page 6 of 8 

 

11.2 Cllr Robinson submitted that his actions were intended merely to emphasise his comments and 
questions and were not meant to be offensive.  Cllr Robinson also answered the point about his 
forgetting a councillor’s name as being that he did indeed simply forget it.  He agreed that he raised 
his voice, but commented that he did so to combat the poor acoustics in the room and he pointed out 
that the Sub-Committee had already established that he had not used offensive language and as 
such did not breach paragraph 4.15 of the Code (“Members must show respect and courtesy to 
others”). 

 
11.3 Cllr Robinson reminded the Sub-Committee of his positive comments at the Clerk’s appraisal.  

Despite the Sub-Committee’s findings of harassment of the Clerk, Cllr Robinson submitted that this 
had not been malicious but accidental and due to his nature, and was not a breach of paragraph 4.16 
of the Code of Conduct (“Members should value the Council’s officers and work alongside them to 
achieve the Council’s objectives.  Members must on no account behave in a manner that might 
constitute bullying”). 

 
11.4 Councillor Robinson also pointed out that certain procedural points of Northill Parish Council’s 

Standing Orders had been clarified during the hearing and the fact that he had not previously been 
aware of those could explain his concerns at the meeting, and therefore his questioning during the 
meeting was at that time appropriate and rational. 

 
12 FINDINGS ON THE BREACH OF THE CODE OF CONDUCT 
 
12.1 The Standards Sub-Committee found unanimously that Cllr Robinson’s behaviour at the meeting on 

8th April 2013 had breached the requirement to set an example and act in a way that enhances public 
trust and confidence in the integrity of the Council and its Members.  Cllr Robinson’s behaviour was 
instrumental in the Chairman being unable to control the meeting as he took advantage of the failure 
of the Chairman to control the meeting and monopolised the floor, and would not relinquish the floor.  
The Sub-Committee considered that this did not set a good standard of behaviour for a councillor.  
The Sub-Committee accepted that Cllr Mrs Turner’s knowledge and experience (over many years as 
a principal council member and leader) led her to conclude that Cllr Robinson had crossed an 
acceptable line thus breaching this part of the Councillor Code of Conduct by such behaviour. 

 
12.2 The Sub-Committee also considered that the persistent questioning at the meeting would not 

enhance public trust and confidence in the integrity of the Council.  The fact that one of its own 
members had failed to accept the answers provided to him could indicate that there was more 
information that was not being given.  Whilst this could be the case, dealing with such issues in the 
way that he did Cllr Robinson did not allow reasoned explanation and possibly enhanced the feelings 
of some that any failure to provide information was being done maliciously.  Furthermore it could be 
expected that Cllr Robinson should understand the decision making processes of the Council and the 
limitations imposed on the Council in respect of information provided in confidence. 

 
12.3 The Standards Sub-Committee also found unanimously that at the meeting of 8th April 2013 Cllr 

Robinson had demonstrated a lack of respect and courtesy to others.  It is not a prerequisite to use 
offensive or insulting language in order to demonstrate a lack of respect and courtesy to others and 
the Sub-Committee agreed that raising one’s voice, monopolising the floor and failing to relinquish the 
floor despite others wanting to speak amid the meeting deteriorating generally showed disrespect and 
a lack of courtesy to the Chairman and the other councillors.  The fact that the Chairman did not have 
control of the meeting and that he failed to stop Cllr Robinson’s questioning did not excuse Cllr 
Robinson’s behaviour.   

 
12.4 It was noted by the Sub-Committee that 10 minutes could be considered a short time, however the 

fact that the questioning continued despite the restive state of the meeting was the relevant issue and 
to continue with such behaviour for any length of time showed a lack of respect and courtesy. 

 
 
 

Page 166
Agenda Item 4



Central Bedfordshire Council  
Re: Cllr I Robinson of Northill Parish Council (Ref: MON001.10976) 
Date: 14th October 2014 

Page 7 of 8 

 

12.5 The Standards Sub-Committee also found unanimously that as Cllr Robinson had harassed the Clerk 
by his questioning and behaviour he had also failed to work alongside and value the Council’s officers 
to achieve the Council’s objectives.  Whilst Cllr Robinson had directed his questions to the Chairman, 
the Chairman had asked the Clerk to respond.  It was therefore appropriate for the Clerk to answer 
the questions in order to move the meeting along as she was the most appropriate person to do so.  
Cllr Robinson’s frustrations at this were misguided and he confirmed during the hearing that he did 
not mind the Clerk answering him direct.  To continue questioning in the manner that he did 
amounted, in the Sub-Committee’s view, to harassment as the end result was that the Clerk felt 
harassed.  It was irrelevant that the questions were directed to the Chairman as it was the Clerk who 
was needed to respond.  The Sub-Committee accepted the Clerk, Mrs Bacon’s, evidence that it was 
the impact on her of Cllr Robinson’s unrelenting questioning that caused her to leave the room.   

 
12.6 The Sub-Committee did agree that Cllr Robinson’s actions fell short of actual bullying, however his 

behaviour was of such a kind as to indicate that Cllr Robinson was certainly not working with the 
Clerk to achieve the Council’s objectives.  

 
12.7 Whilst Cllr Robinson can be  acknowledged as enthusiastically representing his parishioners’ views 

there is no  reason to do so in such a manner which  obviously caused  some distress to the Clerk 
specifically  and to other persons present.  

 
12.8 The Sub-Committee did discuss whether there had been a breach of the Code of Conduct with Martin 

Leppert, the Independent Person consulted by the Investigating Officer during the investigation.  Mr 
Leppert did not demur from the Sub-Committee’s view that there was a breach of the Councillors’ 
Code of Conduct and that some sanction should be applied.  He further expressed the view that this 
matter should have been dealt with long before now and that the events since the meeting of 8th April 
2013 had led to the public hearing.  Mr Leppert also made the point, and the Sub-Committee agreed, 
that it is very odd that Cllr Robinson was not made aware of certain procedural issues and 
requirements of the Council until the first day of the hearing.   

 
13 REPRESENTATIONS ON SANCTIONS TO BE IMPOSED MADE BY THE INVESTIGATING 

OFFICER 
 

13.1 The Investigating Officer confirmed that during her investigation she was keen to explore if there was 
a breakdown of communications or a lack of trust which could perhaps be dealt with by a local 
resolution but this did not appear to be the case.  The Investigating Officer suggested that an 
appropriate person could work independently with the Council and Cllr Robinson to assist with this. 

 
14 REPRESENTATIONS ON SANCTIONS TO BE IMPOSED MADE BY THE SUBJECT MEMBER 

 
14.1 Cllr Robinson reiterated that he had apologised to the Clerk and that he had previously undertaken 

training in respect of appropriate behaviour at Council meetings, but was nonetheless willing to 
undertake more training  

 
15 SANCTIONS IMPOSED BY THE STANDARDS SUB-COMMITTEE 

 
15.1 The Standards Sub-Committee took into account the submissions by the Investigating Officer and Cllr 

Robinson in relation to potential sanctions.  In particular the Sub-Committee took into account the 
previous training Cllr Robinson has already received and that he considered that his apology had 
been ‘the gentlemanly thing to do’ and the serious nature of the breaches of the Code of Conduct and 
the long-lasting effects resulting from those. 

 
15.2 The Sub-Committee agreed to apply the following sanctions: 
 
15.2.1 the public censure of Cllr Robinson; and 
15.2.2 that Cllr Robinson be required to issue a public apology to all Northill Parish Council members and 

the Clerk, Mrs Bacon,  at the next appropriate Northill Parish Council meeting, the wording of the 
apology to be approved in advance by the Monitoring Officer. 

Page 167
Agenda Item 4



Central Bedfordshire Council  
Re: Cllr I Robinson of Northill Parish Council (Ref: MON001.10976) 
Date: 14th October 2014 

Page 8 of 8 

 

 
16 RIGHT TO APPEAL 

 
16.1 If either the complainant or the Member against whom a complaint has been made is dissatisfied with 

the outcome, he/she may ask for the decision to be reviewed (an appeal). A review (appeal) will be 
undertaken by the Standards Appeals Sub-Committee made up of Members who have not previously 
been involved in the consideration of the complaint. 

 
16.2  Any review (appeal) must be received in writing by the Monitoring Officer within 21 days of issue of 

the written decision notice and may be made only on the grounds of: 
         - the procedure being wrongly applied; 
         - new evidence has come to light since the hearing ; or 
         - a misdirection in law. 
 
16.3  The review (appeal) will not be a rehearing and will be conducted on papers only.  
          
16.3  A new Independent Person will also be asked to give their view prior to any decision being made. 
 
16.4  The Standards Appeals Sub-Committee may confirm, or set aside the original decision if it considers 

it unreasonable and substitute its own decision. 
 
16.5  The Standards Appeal Sub-Committee decision is final and there is no further review (appeal).  
 
  
17 RECOMMENDATIONS TO THE COUNCIL 
 
17.1 It is accepted that the misunderstandings of Cllr Robinson of the procedural requirements and the 

Standing Orders of Northill Parish Council contributed, in part, to the reasons for his behaviour and it 
is recommended that Northill Parish Council ask the National Association of Local Councils to assist 
them to review their Standing Orders (SO’s).  It is further recommended that the Council ensures all 
Members have access to an updated copy of the SO’s and briefings are provided to Northill Parish 
Councillors to secure proper understanding across the Council of the SOs. 

 
 

Page 168
Agenda Item 4



 
 
 

APPENDIX (III) 
 
APPEAL BY CLLR ROBINSON WITH 
APPENDICES 

Page 169
Agenda Item 4



This page is intentionally left blank



Cllr Ian Robinson.  Public Hearing29/30 Sept. 2014 
Appeal by Cllr Robinson to the Conclusion 

This is an Official Appeal and contains comments that Cllr Robinson would like brought to the 
attention of the Monitoring Officer, regarding events leading up to and after the Public Hearing.   
 
The references are to the 8 page report of the Public Hearing, PH or Agenda Item 8 of the Hearing 
and hard copies of (Appeal) Appendices AP where stated.  Appendix AP 7 is a separate response by 
Cllr Robinson to the Submission Statement by the Investigating Officer and forms part of the Appeal.  
Appendices 1 to 6 are submitted as hard copies 
 
Comments in Bold Type are considered of prime concern by Cllr Robinson  
 
1. NATURE OF THE COMPLAINTS 
a)  As stated by the Investigating Officer and the Hearing Panel, Cllr Robinson allegedly breached the 
Northill  Parish Code of Leadership. Yet, instead of accepting the recommendation of a local 
resolution by the Investigating Officer, agreed by Cllr Robinson to draw a line under the issue, the  
complaints moved to a Public Hearing. 
b) According to a document produced by Central Beds in July 2012, the involvement of a Standards 
Sub Committee will only occur in relation to the more serious complaints, such as those dealing with 
potential criminal conduct,  Appendix  AP 1. 
c) Cllr Robinson considers that the allegations made are not remotely those of a criminal nature and  
that to imply criminal conduct, by virtue of holding a Public Hearing, is beyond justifiable reasoning.  
d) Furthermore, the implications  of alleged criminal behaviour  leading up to the Hearing, has had 
a most damaging effect on Cllr Robinson’s  character and on his family, which remains to this day. 
e) The definition of harassment used in the allegation of harassing the Clerk was one that cannot be 
defended. The definition implies that if the complainant feels harassed, the defendant is guilty of 
harassment. This definition made in 1997 is possibly outdated and Cllr Robinson considers that a 
more recent definition used by Parish Councils and ACAS alike, dated 2010, would have been more 
appropriate. 
f) The individual complaints do not corroborate each other, 5.1 and there was a dispute in a large 
number of opinions, e.g. some complainants timed the debate as one hour when the PH Findings of 
Facts 9.1.12  is at least 10 minutes, Full details of the varied perception and opinions are to be found 
in Cllr Robinson’s  Defence Document, Agenda P 94 
 
2. NATURE OF REPORTING THE COMPLAINTS   ALSO SEE PAGE 7 OF THIS DOCUMENT  
a) Cllr Robinson asks why the Clerk did not follow the Northill Parish Council’s Standing Orders 26 in 
dealing with complaints regarding employees. This implies that The Clerk should have contacted the 
Chair of the Finance and General Purposes Committee in the respect of a grievance matter. 
b) Cllr Robinson considers that the failure by the Clerk to follow the Standing Orders, and to send her 
complaint directly to the Monitoring Officer, then copy her complaint to all Parish Councillors and 
the Ward Councillor, was inappropriate and hasty. 
c) Standing Order 31 states that Councillors should notify the Clerk being the Proper Officer, in the 
first instance, in respect of an alleged breach of the Code of Conduct. The Councillors complained to 
the Monitoring Office directly, and in this respect were not following the Standing Orders.  
d) Furthermore, the Hearing’s conclusion demonstrates that the relatively minor alleged breach of 
the code, could have been dealt with calmly and satisfactorily within the confines of the Parish 
Council, by following the Standing Orders and the recommendation of the Investigating Officer, 
Agenda  P18 June 2014. 
e) Cllr Robinson’s latter opinions are strengthened by the fact the Clerk admitted she had a 
reasonably good relationship with Cllr Robinson prior to the meeting on the 8/4/13, Agenda P 55 

1 

Page 171
Agenda Item 4



f) The latter comment argues that the issue was blown up out of all proportion. For a debate of at 
least 10 minutes, during which the Clerk and Councillors either pointed or verbally attacked  Cllr 
Robinson, leading to a Public Hearing usually reserved for potential criminal offences, is beyond 
comprehension, Minutes of the meeting  8/4/13, Agenda P 86  
g) Cllr Robinson considers that this unprecedented procedure suggests something quite alarming 
and although no blame is levelled at the Standards Board or to the Hearing itself, the outrageous 
and unproven allegations would suggest that the Parish Council was behaving in a most disreputable 
manner. 
3.  REASONS FOR THE PUBLIC HEARING 
Cllr Robinson is not aware of the reasons for the Public Hearing and would ask that these are 
formally made known to him by the Monitoring Officer. 
 
4.  WITNESS STATEMENTS 
a) Cllr Robinson had agreed to 3 Defence Witnesses being allowed, plus 1 Character Witness. 
However on the 24/9/14, the day of exchange of Witness Statements, only 2 statements were given 
to Cllr Robinson, with the 3rd statement of the Clerk not being received until the 26/9/14. 
b) Furthermore, unknown to Cllr Robinson, 2 further Complaint Witnesses, those of Cllr Turner, the 
Ward Councillor and Lorna McShane, the Investigating Officer, were called on the days of the 
Hearing. Cllr Robinson had not seen their statements and was unable to prepare his questioning of 
these witnesses, if allowed by the Panel. 
c) The Investigation Complaint Report, stated that the complaints referred to the events of the 
8/4/13 and the Parish Council Code of Conduct 4.14, 4.15 & 4.16.  The contents of this report and 
that of the Hearing, referred to many other allegations and alleged breaches of conduct that 
subsequently had no bearing on the evening in question. Agenda  P 11 
d) Cllr Robinson refers here to his alleged inappropriate association with two parishioners, the APM 
on the 31/3/14, his involvement with Caldecote Voices, a village residents association, in 2014 and 
events leading to a Grievance  Employment Panel meeting on the 13/5/14, amongst others. 
e) Cllr Robinson believes he was disadvantaged in not knowing these issues would be raised at the 
Hearing and hence did not prepare his defence for these issues, nor did he provide relative Defence 
Witnesses. 
f) The allegations against the  played a major part in the Hearing, yet the issue had 
little to do with the 8/4/13. 
g) Cllr Robinson was not asked if he wished to call Jill Parker, a Character witness, although she was 
present throughout the Hearing. 
h) Despite earlier requests, Cllr Robinson was not given a list of all the public attendees at the 
meeting on the 8/4/13 by Cllr Papworth, the Chair of Northill Parish Council, until the week before 
the Hearing. He was still not given a copy of the list, but asked to visit Cllr Papworth’s home to 
inspect the list only. As a result of this request delay, Cllr Robinson was unable to provide 
independent letters of support from any other witnesses before the agreed deadline imposed by the 
Monitoring Office.  
 
5. THE MANNER  AND PROCEDURE OF THE HEARING 
a) Cllr Robinson  was informed  that the Panel had not conducted a Hearing previously and this may 
explain that the procedure flowchart was not entirely followed as displayed, Agenda  P 9. 
b) The biggest concern was that Findings of Fact, PH Section 9,  was not established at the beginning 
of the Hearing as indicated in the Hearing Procedure, Agenda P 9  and  did not provide Cllr Robinson 
an opportunity to use his defence based  upon facts as he had carefully planned, Agenda  P 94 
c) The requests for a definition of harassment and bullying, that the Hearing would only deal with 
the events of the 8/4/13 with the subsequent breach of the code and a redaction of unrelated issues 
in the report, were refused by the panel.  Appendix  AP 3 

2 

Page 172
Agenda Item 4



d) Cllr Robinson was not aware that Cllr Turner, the Ward Councillor, had put in a complaint soon 
after the 8/4/13 and would subsequently be called as a Complaint Witness. 
e) Cllr Robinson considers that the privileged protection afforded to the Clerk of not being 
questioned by Cllr Robinson, for fear of being harassed in public, to be a serious prejudicial matter. 
f ) Cllr Robinson considers that Cllr Papworth exercised a most blatant and outrageous perception  
in this request, by suggesting that the Clerk is not safe from verbal harassment by Cllr Robinson. 
g) Though generally supportive of the Panel’s judgement, Cllr Robinson generally believed this action 
was well beyond acceptable procedure at the Hearing. 
h)  Cllr Turner, who is well respected within Central Beds, confirmed that she had experienced many 
heated debates. In Cllr Robinson’s opinion Cllr Turner, in her reference to ‘Cllr Robinson  has crossed 
the line’, failed to provide serious allegations of poor conduct akin to a criminal offence, warranting 
a Public Hearing. 
i) Cllr Robinson was not aware of any Witness Statement of the Investigating Officer until the 
Hearing, nor was he aware that the Investigating Officer would cross examine him, since  it was not 
stated in the Procedure Flowchart, Agenda P 9 
j) Although thoroughly unexpected, Cllr Robinson accepted, what he considers to be strong 
persistent questioning from the Investigating Officer. However, he wishes it to be noted, that in his 
eyes and in those of many attendees of the Hearing, the harassing manner of the cross examination 
was far more severe  than the alleged harassment of the Clerk on the 8/4/13. 
k) The issue above becomes more important when it is considered that if the Clerk was questioned 
in this manner by the Investigating Officer or anyone else, would she had made a complaint of 
alleged harassment at the Hearing? 
l) Cllr Robinson also considers that the Submission Statement of the Investigating Officer did not 
keep to the Findings of Fact,  Appendix  AP 7 
m) Also, the opportunity for Cllr Robinson to prepare a suitable defence to cross examine the 
Investigating Officer as a witness, did not arise. 
n) The Investigating Officer made it very clear that she was questioning Cllr Robinson and any 
questioning of her as a witness,  was subsequently denied. 
o) Cllr Robinson was not prepared in his defence to question the Complaint Witnesses on issues 
unrelated to the 8/4/13, nor did he have Defence Witnesses to call on for the unrelated issues for 
reasons given above. 
 
6. EVIDENCE NOT APPARENTLY FULLY CONSIDERED AT THE HEARING, INCLUDING FRESH EVIDENCE 
a) The Agenda for the Parish Council Planning meeting on the 25/3/13, where the committee 
recommended the Biggleswade Road site was issued on the 18/3/13  stated that the site had already 
been recommended. This suggests that the decision had already been made before the Planning 
meeting,  Appendix  AP 4 
b) The Chair of the 8/4/13 meeting publicly stated at a subsequent Parish Council meeting that his 
article in the Biggleswade Chronicle on the 19/4/13 commenting on harassing and bullying the Clerk 
did not refer to Cllr Robinson, who has witness statements to support it, Appendix  AP 5 
c) The official minutes written by the Clerk, one of the complainants, records that the Chair replied 
‘no comment’. However, such wording, even if accurate, does not confirm that Cllr Robinson in the 
Chair’s view, was harassing or bullying the Clerk. At the same time, the Chair, by stating ‘no 
comment’ was allegedly not giving reasons to the Parish Council for his article. This could be 
described as allegedly breaking the Council’s Code of Conduct, Openness 4.10 Appendix  AP 6 
a) Quite a lot was made regarding the designated powers of the Parish Council Planning committee 
in having the authority to make a resolution on a planning application. 
d) Cllr Robinson was mildly rebuked for not reading and following his copy of the Standing Orders 
adopted by the Parish Council on the 21/5/12. 
 

3 

Page 173
Agenda Item 4



e) Cllr Robinson has subsequently read the latest Standing Orders containing recent revisions and 
finds there is no reference to this designated power of the Planning Committee or any other 
Committee,  www.bedsparishes.gov.uk/northill-parish-council 
f) Reference was made at the hearing through the Complaint Witness Statements, to the 
Employment Grievance Panel as being necessary to prevent Cllr Robinson communicating with the 
Clerk. However the legality of the meeting was never questioned at the Hearing, despite the fact 
that the panel and Acting Clerk were made up of four of the complainants and Cllr Robinson was 
denied representation, requested documents and allowed only one days notice to attend the panel 
meeting. 
g) One of the documents requested by Cllr Robinson, as a part employer of the Clerk, was the Clerk’s 
job application form. The Clerk had complained about extra  burden of work due to excessive but 
lawful FOI requests. Cllr Robinson’s  request was made in order to determine if all the Clerk’s 
commitments in other areas had been stated in her application. Cllr Robinson considers this to be a 
reasonable request as an elected Councillor and employer of the Clerk, since the previous Clerk had 

 in her application, and subsequently convicted of fraud. 
h) Also, the Clerk had made 14 allegations against Cllr Robinson at the Employment Grievance panel 
meeting and it seemed quite appropriate to ensure that both the panel of Councillors and Cllr 
Robinson, all employers of the Clerk, were looking at the allegations, in the knowledge of the fuil 
background of the Clerk, the complainant. 
i) The request for a copy of the application form was considered inappropriate at the Hearing and it 
was stated that the application was confidential to the Chair only.  However, Cllr Papworth, the Chair 
subsequently stated that all the applicants’ paperwork had been destroyed, Agenda  P 115 
j) Cllr Robinson considers that this action is a breach of the Council’s Standing Orders 26, which 
states...’The Council shall keep written records relating to employees secure...’ 
k) There is evidence to suggest that the Clerk was engaged in additional employment at the time of 
her application. The destruction of the Clerk’s paperwork prohibits confirmation on her application.  
 
7. CONCLUSION OF THE PANEL 
a) Cllr Robinson believes holding a Public Hearing for such a minor alleged breach of code of conduct 
to be totally unnecessary for reasons mentioned above. He recognises that the Panel had a job to 
do, but he has concerns regarding the procedure and also the issues raised that were unrelated to 
the 8/4/13. 
b) He considers that the conclusion reached was inappropriate, but recognises that the views of the 
Ward Councillor and the Submission Statement of the Investigating Officer probably played a major 
part in the decision and hence Cllr Robinson has responded separately to the latter, Appendix AP 7 
c) However, apart from the comments above, Cllr Robinson had confidence in the fairness of the 
Panel and that of its Chair. He is particularly appreciative of the fact that the greater majority of the 
allegations made by the complainants were ruled out and for this reason, Cllr Robinson feels 
vindicated of the unsubstantiated accusations regarding his behaviour on the 8/4/13 and beyond. 
d) The false allegations, together with a request to review the Standing Orders of the Parish Council 
are now in the public domain and could bring the Parish Council into disrepute. 
e) The denial of these allegations in PH Section 6 compared with the Findings of Fact in Section 9, 
goes a long way in confirming these opinions. 
 
8. ESTABLISHED FACTS 
a) Findings of Fact, PH Section 9.1.6 The Clerk did not have the relevant paperwork as shown in the 
Minutes of the meeting, Agenda  P 86 
b) Cllr Robinson considers that harassing the Clerk using the definition used by the Panel, is not a 
fact, but an opinion, PH Section 9.1.11. It is Cllr Robinson’s understanding that a fact must be 
established, eg, swearing , before an opinion can be formed that harassment has occurred. 

4 

Page 174
Agenda Item 4



c) Cllr Robinson is well aware that the confidential information given to the Council was not for the 
public domain. However, the failure of the Chair of the meeting on the 8/4/13, to mention the 
confidentiality of the matter to the meeting,  put the Clerk in an awkward position.  
d) The information referred to above remains confidential to this day and although Cllr Robinson 
appreciates that certain Council matters need to remain confidential, the confidential issues 
regarding planning decisions involving the whole community, are questionable. 
e) It was also noted that the comment regarding the authority of the developers having influence 
on planning decisions, was not received well at the Hearing, nor at a recent Neighbourhood 
Planning meeting in Northill Parish. 
f) Cllr Robinson maintains that the majority of the Parish of Northill, and probably including most of 
the Councillors, many newly elected, are unaware of the power that the developers wield and he 
considers that such lack of transparency was a major contributory factor to the disorder at the 
meeting in question on the 8/4/13 
  
9. EVENTS SINCE 29/30 SEPTEMBER 2014 
a) Cllr Robinson considers that the fact that the Hearing dismissed the vast majority of the 
allegations, including those alleging he had inappropriately supported  influenced 
Cllr Mandley’s  decision  not to resubmit her separate complaint against Cllr Robinson. 
b) This complaint, despite being withdrawn, has made some very serious allegations against both Cllr 
Robinson  
c) No public apology has been offered to Cllr Robinson by Cllr Mandley 
regarding  these  allegations. 
d) Despite a full vindication of of any wrongdoing by a First Tier Tribunal 

http://www.informationtribunal.gov.uk/DBFiles/Decision/i1242/EA-2012-0149-170314.pdf    

the Parish Council continues to act towards both Cllr Robinson  in a manner that 

can only be described as a Vendetta.
 

e) No public apology has been made by any of the complainants to Cllr Robinson for publicly making 
false allegations against him. Findings of Fact, PH Section 9, omitted the majority of the allegations. 
e)  

 
 

f) Despite the Investigating Officer finding no inappropriate activities by Caldecote Voices, Cllr 
Papworth continues to publicly malign this Village Resident’s Association. 
g) This attitude of Cllr Papworth continues into Parish Council Neighbourhood Planning meetings 
where sadly, there appears to be no let up in Cllr Papworth challenging the integrity of Cllr Robinson 
or  who Cllr Robinson justifiably supports. 
h) At the Full Council meeting following the Hearing, several complainants failed to acknowledge Cllr 
Robinson’s greeting. The video recording of the meeting demonstrates the way he was treated 
differently by the Chair compared with another Councillor, when raising a question. However the 
draft minutes of the meeting gives a different version, presumably to comply with fair play. 
i) Cllr Robinson has noted that the  Monitoring Office has requested that the 8 pages of the details 
and findings of the report of the Hearing is confidential during the time of the Appeal and that 
Central  Beds is the official authority for any detailed publication of the findings. 
j) However, despite advice to the contrary, Cllr Papworth, the Chair, made a public statement 
regarding the findings of the Hearing at a Full Parish Council meeting on the 13/10/14. 
k) Draft minutes containing a record of the statement were produced by the Clerk soon after the 
meeting and if approved at the next Council meeting on the 24/11/14, will appear on the Parish 
Council web site and notice boards. 
l) Although it is understood that the press may report on Council meetings, Cllr Robinson is seeking 
assurance that his Public Apology will only be publicised by Central Beds and not by the Council. 
 

5 

Page 175
Agenda Item 4

http://www.informationtribunal.gov.uk/DBFiles/Decision/i1242/EA-2012-0149-170314.pdf


m)  
 

 
n)  

 
o) There have been attempts by Northill Parish Council to allegedly prevent lawful filming of the Full 
ParishCouncil meeting on the 13/10/14.  
p) At a meeting of the Northill Parish Council Finance and General purposes Committee on the 
23/10/14, a parishioner has reported that the meeting was allegedly unlawfully closed to the public 
due to public filming This closure was resolved by the above committee, following a request by the 
Clerk that she considered the filming of the meeting was causing her harassment. 
 
10. SUMMARY 
a)  Cllr Robinson considers that  making a repeated apology, albeit in public, would  appear to be a 
straightforward way forward in complying with the request of the Standards Board and partly with 
the wishes of the Parish Council. 
b) However, carrying out such a request could only further mask the true events of the disorderly 
evening and falsely hold Cllr Robinson totally responsible for the disorder, together with his 
alleged bad behaviour, allegedly bringing the Council into disrepute and allegedly harassing the 
Clerk. 
c) Cllr Robinson considers that none of these accusations are true and that to publicly apologise for 
such matters is not being truthful to himself nor to such people with an honest and reasonable 
judgement that witnessed the events on the evening in question. He feels that a public apology 
would be taken as an admission of unsubstantiated guilt. 
d) If an Appeal were to be made, it would be for the reason of bringing public awareness to the 
behaviour of Northill Parish Council 
e) The Parish Council will give no guarantee that an apology will be an end to the matter as it will not 
confirm that fresh complaints will be not be made by the Clerk or Councillors against Cllr Robinson.  
f) The conclusion was understandably formed by the Panel that was not able to witness the 
proceedings. Cllr Robinson is of the opinion that had more Defence Witnesses been agreed to 
balance the 5 complaint witnesses, then a different conclusion might have been reached. 
g) The majority of the allegations  were not substantiated in the Findings of Fact Section 9. However, 
all the statements of the 5 letters of support and the 3 Defence Witness Statements were 
established in the Findings of Fact Section 9 
h) Cllr Robinson considers that the unproven allegations of the complainants were therefore 
unreliable in reaching a just conclusion. The frequency of the unsubstantiated and outrageous 
comments could be seen as an effort to protect the Clerk at all costs and the removal of Cllr 
Robinson from office, a desire clearly stated in the official complaint forms. 
i) Cllr Robinson and the majority of the public attending the meeting on the 8/4/13, have no doubt in 
their minds,  that no breach of any Councillor Code of Conduct was breached by Cllr Robinson.  
j) Cllr Robinson considers that the continuing  claims of alleged harassment and grievance issues 
made by the Clerk, is in danger of creating a Council stifling free speech and healthy debate. 
 
However, once again to demonstrate cooperation, good will and to carry out the requests of the 
Sub Committee , Cllr Robinson agrees to publicly apologise to the Clerk and Councillors of Northill 
Parish Council.  A written apology is sent as a separate attachment.  
 
If the apology is approved, then the appeal will be withdrawn. If the apology is not agreed by Cllr 
Robinson and the Monitoring Officer, Cllr Robinson wishes the appeal to remain in force.  
 
Ian Robinson 3rd November 2014                               6 

Page 176
Agenda Item 4



 

 
 

STANDING ORDERS USED AT THE TIME OF THE COMPLAINTS 
 
PLEASE NOTE. THIS NEEDS TO BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH 2a ON PAGE 1 OF THIS DOCUMENT 
 
a) At the time of the complaints by the Clerk and the 6 Councillors, i.e.soon after the 8/4/13, the 
existing Standing Orders had not been revised.  
 
b) For that reason the Clerk and the Councillors should have followed the Standing Orders at that 
time which was No. 30 Allegations of breaches of the code of conduct, Appendix AP 2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

7 

Page 177
Agenda Item 4



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 179
Agenda Item 4



Page 180
Agenda Item 4



Page 181
Agenda Item 4



Page 182
Agenda Item 4



Page 183
Agenda Item 4



Page 184
Agenda Item 4



Page 185
Agenda Item 4



Page 186
Agenda Item 4



Page 187
Agenda Item 4



Page 188
Agenda Item 4



Page 189
Agenda Item 4



Page 190
Agenda Item 4



Page 191
Agenda Item 4



Page 192
Agenda Item 4



Page 193
Agenda Item 4



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 

APPENDIX (IV) 
 
SUBMISSIONS BY SUBJECT MEMBER AT 
HEARING 

Page 195
Agenda Item 4



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 197
Agenda Item 4



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 199
Agenda Item 4



Page 200
Agenda Item 4


	Agenda
	4 Standards Sub-Committee Hearing (Appeal)
	Report to Standards Sub-Committee (Appeal) - Cllr Robinson 24
	APPENDIX (I)
	Procedure at Hearing
	Hearing Procedure flowchart
	ComplaintsInvestigationReportNorthillCouncil6614
	Appendix A REDACTED
	Appendix B REDACTED
	Appendix C REDACTED
	Appendix D REDACTED
	Appendix E REDACTED
	Appendix F REDACTED
	Appendix G REDACTED
	Appendix H REDACTED
	Appendix I REDACTED
	Appendix J REDACTED
	Appendix K REDACTED
	Appendix L ADDITIONAL REDACTIONS 0516
	Appendix M REDACTED
	Appendix N REDACTED
	Appendix O REDACTED
	Appendix P REDACTED
	Appendix Q REDACTED
	Appendix R REDACTED
	Appendix S REDACTED
	Appendix T REDACTED
	Defence document ADDITIONAL REDACTIONS 0516
	Appendices to Defence ADDITIONAL REDACTIONS 0516
	Cllr Papworth Statement REDACTED
	L Bacon Statement unsigned REDACTED
	Statement Cllr Mandley REDACTED
	Witness Statement of J Davies REDACTED
	Witness Statement of Jill Parker (1) REDACTED
	Witness Statement of Jill Parker (2) REDACTED
	Witness Statement of Mrs Randle REDACTED
	APPENDIX (II)
	Decision Notice 14 10 14
	APPENDIX (III)
	Appeal REDACTED
	Appeal Appendices REDACTED
	APPENDIX (IV)
	Comments on Facts REDACTED
	Comments on Code of Conduct REDACTED


